July 18, 2019
[bookmark: _GoBack]
TRANSCRIPT OF THE MEETING OF THE
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	LET IT BE REMEMBERED, that the Collier County Planning Commission, in and for the County of Collier, having conducted business herein, met on this date at 9:00 a.m., in REGULAR SESSION in Building "F" of the Government Complex, East Naples, Florida, with the following members present:
	
	CHAIRMAN:  	Mark Strain 
	Stan Chrzanowski 
	Karl Fry
Edwin Fryer
				 						Karen Homiak  
	ABSENT:    	Joe Schmitt
				 						Patrick Dearborn 


ALSO PRESENT: 
Raymond V. Bellows, Zoning Manager
Nancy Gundlach, Principal Planner
Anita Jenkins, Principal Planner
Heidi Ashton‑Cicko, Managing Assistant County Attorney 
Sally Ashkar, Assistant County Attorney 
Tom Eastman, School District Representative
P R O C E E D I N G S  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Good morning, everyone.  Welcome to the July 18th meeting of the Collier County Planning Commission.  If everybody will please rise for Pledge of Allegiance. 
(The Pledge of Allegiance was recited in unison.)
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Will the secretary please do the roll call.  
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Mr. Eastman?
MR. EASTMAN:  Here. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Mr. Chrzanowski?
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Here.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Mr. Fry? 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Here.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I'm here.
Chairman Strain? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Here.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Vice Chair Homiak?
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Here.   
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Mr. Schmitt? 
COMMISSIONER SCHMITT:  (No response.)
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Mr. Dearborn?
COMMISSIONER DEARBORN:  (No response.)  
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Mr. Chairman, we have a quorum of five.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Mr. Dearborn and Mr. Schmitt notified me they wouldn't be able to be here today for conflicts, so they have excused absences. 
That takes us to the addenda to the agenda.  And at this point in time, I was going to talk about a request for a continuance for the Allura project.  And I know Mr. Pritt is here.  I didn't see a lot of the public.  We were going to entertain discussions from any members of the public who needed to speak today who could not be here for the continued date, which would be August 1st.  
So with that in mind, I think what we'll do is we'll have the continuance action after the Siena project.  That way we can make sure everybody that shows up has an opportunity.  
Richard. 
MR. YOVANOVICH:  Mr. Strain, I think the reason you don't see the crowd is I made sure that Mr. Pritt was copied on my request, and I believe he reached out to his people to tell them that we think we're going to get continued; don't waste your time coming ‑‑ so I ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, that's good.  I'm glad ‑‑ 
MR. YOVANOVICH:  I hope we can ‑‑  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Mr. Pritt can just acknowledge that.  That apparently may be the reason why most of the people aren't here? 
MR. PRITT:  Robert Pritt, for the record.  I represent Mediterra.  
I did receive the email from Mr. Yovanovich last evening, and I passed the word to the principals that I'm working with.  And I know that one decided not to come.  I don't see the other one.  
So I don't know how far out the word went within the community itself, but I did indicate to them that it was likely that it would be continued.  We don't have a particular concern with that if you want to continue it till August 1st. 
I do have a ‑‑ I would have a request, and that will come up on August 1st.  I'd like to be able to speak and get out of here by about 11 because I have to go over to the east coast for a special magistrate hearing.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  We're going to have to discuss that a little bit only because we have another action that was first on the agenda on August 1st, and it's going to be well populated.  And they'd already requested the time frame, so that would put it past 11.  
Richard, what about moving your continuance to the second meeting in August? 
MR. YOVANOVICH:  I talked to Bob.  I don't think he can be here August 15th.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.
MR. YOVANOVICH:  So ‑‑ and, of course, I'll accommodate him going wherever in the order before 11.  Even if I haven't spoken yet, I'd be happy to let him do that.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I don't mind working that into the time frame.  I know the first one coming up is both a small‑scale plan amendment and a PUD amendment.  Both of them have got some heightened public concern with the surrounding neighborhood.  I'm not sure how well attended it will be, but on the premise it will take ‑‑ 
MR. YOVANOVICH:  Which item is it; do you know? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Pardon me? 
MR. YOVANOVICH:  Vanderbilt Commons? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I'm not sure how involved it's going to get.  I just couldn't guarantee we'll be done by 11.  We'll figure out a way to accommodate your time frame, Mr. Pritt.  You've got until 11.  If we squeezed you in before the ‑‑ how much time will you need? 
MR. PRITT:  Five, six minutes.  I think your limit is seven for the ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I wouldn't ‑‑ you're representing a large group.  You would be able to ‑‑
MR. PRITT:  I'd try to make sure I keep within the seven‑minute period.  Probably five or six.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  We'll fit that in before 11 on the 1st.
MR. PRITT:  Thank you.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  With that, is there any public speakers for the Allura project besides Mr. Pritt?   
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  I guess we'll then ‑‑ instead of deferring the vote on the continuance, we'll do it now.  And I did check, the next meeting is August 1st.  And with the ‑‑ this item would normally be first up because it's continued, but we're going to have the other one up.  Vanderbilt Commons is already scheduled, so we're going to leave them first.  We'll interrupt that meeting to accommodate some time for Mr. Pritt, probably closer to the break if we haven't already started on Allura by then, and then we'll go into Allura after Vanderbilt Commons, and that will work for everybody, I think. 
So with that, is there a motion from the Planning Commission to continue the two Allura items?  And I'll read them off.  The first one is PL20170004419, which is the Livingston Road/Veterans Memorial Boulevard East residential subdistrict, and then the second one is the PL20170004385, and that's the Allura RPUD.  
All those ‑‑ the question:  Is there a motion to continue those two items to the August 1st meeting?  It will be the second meeting up.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  So moved.
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Second.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Seconded.  Mr. Karl Fry, not Fryer, and Karen seconded.  
All those in favor, signify by saying aye.  
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Aye.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Anybody opposed? 
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Motion carries ‑‑ five of us now ‑‑ 5‑0.  
So those, Allura and the subsequent master plan amendment, will be continued to the August 1st meeting as noted.  
So with that, we'll move right into our next item on the agenda, which is Planning Commission absences.  Does anybody know if they're not going to make it here on the 1st of August?
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, we'll have a quorum.  And I'll wait and see what Joe and Pat are going to do at that time.
The approval of the minutes:  We have two electronic versions were sent to us:  One for the May 16th and one for June 16th.  We'll take May 16th first.  Any changes to the May 16th minutes?  
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Hearing none, is there a motion to approve? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Move approval.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  By Ned.  Seconded by? 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Second.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Second.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Karl.  
Discussion?  
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  All in favor, signify by saying aye.  
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Aye.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Anybody opposed? 
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Motion carries 5‑0.
Same request for June 6th.  Are there any changes to that needed?
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Move approval.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Approval by Ned.  Seconded by? 
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Second.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Stan.  
Discussion?  
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  All in favor, signify by saying aye.  
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Aye.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Anybody opposed? 
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Motion carries 5‑0 for that.  
Takes us to the BCC report and recaps.  They had their last meeting, Ray.  Anything happen?
MR. BELLOWS:  Yes.  The conditional use for the concrete batch plant on the East Trail, that was Conditional Use No. PL20170002361, that was approved on the Board's summary agenda, so that would be subject to the Planning Commission recommendation.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But it was staying on summary? 
MR. BELLOWS:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  So the ‑‑ okay, thank you.  That's it.  
Okay.  Chairman's report:  Nothing new.  We're just going to move through the summer and keep going, gentlemen and ladies.  
With that, there's nothing on the consent agenda.  
The next advertised public hearing ‑‑ and, by the way, we have two things left for today.  The first one will be the Orange Blossom Gardens PUD called Siena Lakes, and the last one that will be discussed today is the Golden Gate Area Master Plan adoption hearing.
So let's move in with the first one.  It's PL20180001147 ‑‑ 1174, I'm sorry, Orange Blossom Gardens PUD to the ‑‑ change it to the Siena Lakes CCRC CPUD.  
All those wishing to testify on behalf of this item, please rise to be sworn in by the court reporter.
(The speakers were duly sworn and indicated in the affirmative.)
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Thank you.  Thank you, sir.  Disclosures:  We'll start with Tom.
MR. EASTMAN:  No disclosures outside of those in the public record.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Stan.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  No.  Not on this project, no.  I talked to Mr. Yovanovich, but I ‑‑ the only thing ‑‑ well, yeah, I talked to Mr. Yovanovich briefly.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Karl.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Staff and emails as distributed.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Ned.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Staff, emails, and Mr. Yovanovich.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And I had a phone conversation with Mr. Yovanovich.  I had set a meeting up with the group, but I didn't make ‑‑ I couldn't make it to the meeting because I had an illness that day, so I wasn't here.  So other than that, I don't recall of any other discussions. 
Go ahead, Karen.
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  I spoke to Mr. Yovanovich.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  With that, Bob, it's all yours.
MR. MULHERE:  Thank you.  For the record, Bob Mulhere with Hole Montes here representing Erickson Living.  
The screen indicates that Brian Palmer from Erickson Living is here, but that's not actually the case.  He had some other pending activities he had to tend to, and so we have Scott Genson (sic) here from Erickson Living. 
Rich Yovanovich is our land‑use attorney.  I have Paula McMichael with me here as well who has worked extensively on this project and may need to help me.
Barry Jones had an emergency situation, but we've got the esteemed Terry Cole with us.  Terry did all of the majority of stormwater engineering for all the properties abutting Orange Blossom between Airport and Livingston, so he will be a good resource on those issues; and Norm Trebilcock, who is our transportation engineer.  
This aerial ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Before I ‑‑ before we get into it too far, I see staff back there, but I don't see our transportation staff.  Okay.  As long as someone from transportation ‑‑ I just was told Trinity's in the hall.  I just want to make sure someone from transportation is here.  
Thank you, Trinity.  Appreciate it. 
Go ahead, Bob.
MR. MULHERE:  Okay.  So this aerial depicts the subject site.  The original PUD is outlined by the faded red line here, and this is the portion that we are adding to the site.  It's 5.85 acres.  This is St. Katherine's Greek Orthodox Church here.  They also own this parcel right here.  This is Lakeside of Naples, Bridgewater Bay, and Walden Oaks and, of course, Orange Blossom running through.
And this is the zoning map.  As I said, the Orange Blossom Gardens portion of ‑‑ the remaining portion of Orange Blossom Gardens PUD is 5.85 acres, and the existing approved Siena Lakes CCRC is 29.25 acres. 
A little bit of history:  The Orange Blossom Gardens PUD was originally approved by Ordinance 85‑5, and it allowed 84 dwelling units at the time.  It was amended in '92, reducing the density down to 40 multifamily units; and again in '09, reducing the acreage down to the 5.85 and allowing for 20 multifamily.  
We amended that in 2018 to add the temporary principal use of off‑site sales for the Siena Lakes CRCC CPUD and added uses accessory to St. Katherine's Greek Orthodox Church.  They own the property.  And the reason we added that was just in case this didn't go forward, they would have the ability, if we were going through the process, to continue to use that parcel for their own reasons.  
Actually, the off‑site sales center was constructed and opened in early 2019, and maybe you've seen some of the advertising for the project on TV.  I know I have. 
Siena Lakes was originally approved in 2009 by Ordinance 09‑65.  I believe Terry worked on the original project.  It allowed 340 independent living units and assisted living units and 20 assisted living beds, 45 skilled nursing beds, and 15 memory care beds, and it allowed for a floor area ratio at that time of 0.6 at that time.  PUDs came in and asked for a higher floor area ratio, and they were granted, but there wasn't a requirement then to ask for a deviation, so this PUD was approved for a floor area ratio of 0.6. 
A PDI was approved in 2018, which revised the ratio of permitted residential units without increasing the total number, and revised master plan details.  At that time it allowed 355 independent living units, 35 ALUs, 30 skilled nursing and memory care beds.  
This particular request now is to add that 5.85 acres of Orange Blossom Gardens into Siena Lakes, assuming ‑‑ if this is approved, then Erickson will close o n the property and acquire it.  
It's also to increase the ILUs by 76 for a total of 431, increase the ALUs by 12 for a total of 47, increase the square footage from 764,478 to 878,889, and allow a combined floor area ratio of 0.58.  That number is achieved by applying .45 to the new parcel, retaining the .6.  That's what you get, 0.58. 
We are revising some development standards, revising and adding some deviations, and we'll go over those in just in minute, and also revising and adding developer commitments that now are standard ‑‑ the standard required but probably weren't at the time that this was originally approved.
I have to say that this is if not the most, certainly one of the most detailed master plans I have ever seen in Collier County.  It has a lot of detail, and I suppose that's a good thing, because there was a lot of discussion with the neighboring communities at the time that this was approved.  And this is our proposed master plan which retains that detail, and this is, I guess, Sheet 1 of 6.  
I want to point out the sales facility right here, which is a one‑story building, and you can see that this building here is three over parking.  
The property line ‑‑ well, actually, I have another exhibit that outlines it a little bit better, so I'll hold off on that until I get to that exhibit.  
This is the proposed master plan for the 5.85‑acre Orange Blossom piece that we're adding to the Siena Lakes CCRC PUD (sic).   
This is Sheet 2, which shows the southern portion of the property ‑‑ excuse me ‑‑ the eastern portion of the property.  As you can see, this is the land‑use summary.  I know there will be some questions.  We do know that there is one error here that we need to correct.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Actually, there's two.  There's three different numbers, so two of them have got to be corrected.
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.  I thought I'd wait until you raised those issues.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  You can bring it up any time.
MR. MULHERE:  Well, I know for sure this says over here ‑‑ I'm trying to ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  It says 64 over there.
MR. MULHERE:  Exactly. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And to the left it's 63.2, and to the top it's 62.5 or 4 or something like ‑‑ 
MR. MULHERE:  63 percent is the correct number, so... 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.
MR. MULHERE:  This is a sight exhibit, sightline exhibit.  And this is the typical cross‑sections and setbacks and so on and so forth.  This is a colorized exhibit with renderings of the structures and a key to locate those renderings.
I don't know if you ‑‑ when I downloaded the staff report, the Accela package, it seemed that some of the documents were cut off or hard to ‑‑ you know, it may have just been an error ‑‑ operator error.  Are you‑all okay with what you have?  You were able to look at it properly and ‑‑ yes?  Okay.  Because I brought a copy I can put on the ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  The only issue I would have taken is that the master plan was split in two sheets.
MR. MULHERE:  Too big.  Too much detail.  It's easier to follow it by splitting it in two sheets.  I think once we added this piece, it was just so much information ‑‑ oh, you mean in the Accela exhibit?  No, we put a match line on it, yeah.  It's just hard to ‑‑ it's not uncommon with a big piece of property.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.
MR. MULHERE:  So with respect to the development standards and the changes that we requested, we reduced the minimum floor area for the ALU from 600 to 450.  The industry has recognized that because of the cost of these things, while residents may come in early on looking for a larger unit, typically pretty quickly they're looking for a smaller unit.  And that was my experience with my own parents when they entered into an ALF.  And, you know, they went in with a larger unit, and within six months they went to the smaller unit.  
The minimum setback to Orange Blossom Drive is measured from the edge of the right‑of‑way reservation rather than the current property line.  Now, we still have the same setback from our property line.  We are 100 feet from the property line, but we reduced it to 60 because the county is going to acquire 40 feet.  And I have a slide that demonstrates that a little bit better. 
Amend the setback to the west to reflect the new property boundary adjacent to the church and the church‑owned parcel, and I'll show you that in just a minute.  We had a setback for the porte cocheres that are part of the project, and we've exempted open‑water structures from setback requirements, a pier, those kind of things. 
This shows the property line.  I'm trying to remember ‑‑ click again.  I guess I wanted to show you ‑‑ this is the ‑‑ oh, thank you.  Okay.  So this is the current property line.  You can see the current property line, and you can see the proposed property line or proposed master plan setback line.  
The county actually increased the amount of right‑of‑way that they requested from us.  And we've agreed to provide that right‑of‑way, but we've revised the setback to reflect what will be the property line when the county acquires that right‑of‑way. 
So in this case you can see it's a one‑story ‑‑ or, excuse me, you can't.  This is a three‑story over parking and also a three‑story over parking here, but further to the north where the sales facility is, it's a one‑story building.
And this is the setback adjacent to ‑‑ this is the original west property line.  I'm sorry.  And this is the new west property line.  You can see here ‑‑ I want to point out that there are some lakes here that straddle that property line we addressed in the previous PDI and amendment.  
The stormwater management for the system is in a couple of different basins.  I don't claim to be an expert on that.  Terry can speak to the issue.  But we negotiated and worked with St. Katherine's and developed a plan that would address stormwater really for both ‑‑ for all ‑‑ for both property owners.  We worked with the staff and the Water Management District to address the permitting issues related to that.  So this really provides for the best stormwater management system, and it makes sense, and everybody agreed to that.
Some of the deviations, 1 through 5, that were previously approved, there were minor changes to wording made necessary to reflect the new PUD boundary.  Deviation 6 we were withdrawing.  I understand there may be some other questions regarding deviations, which we'll get to, and Deviation 7 was added related to that new property line where we're not providing a landscape buffer where the shared stormwater lakes exist between adjacent properties.  
The property to the west will have a landscape buffer, but obviously we're not going to put one in the middle of the lake.  And also there is a need to have a clear area right in here for fire protection.  
We've added, as I said, the standard general commitments.  For example, a trip cap, those types of standard commitments.  We've added the right‑of‑way dedication for Orange Blossom Gardens.  References to landscape buffer deviation as it relates to what I just mentioned with respect to the stormwater lakes.  
And we've added an environmental commitment that was required at the time we amended the Orange Blossoms ‑‑ the 5.85‑acre remaining piece of the Orange Blossom's PUD.  I've been told in conversations with Nancy that that may not still be required, but it's in there right now.  So we can have a discussion about that.  And I see Craig is here, so he can weigh in if ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I think the discussion was if it's required, it has to be in the code.  If it's not in the code, then why is it being added.  That's going to be the point.
MR. MULHERE:  Okay.  Got it.  
The project, as proposed, is not a significant or adverse traffic generator for the roadway network at this location.  There is adequate and sufficient roadway capacity to accommodate the proposed development without adversely affecting adjacent roadway network level of service.  
Turn‑lane improvements are warranted at the project accesses on Orange Blossom, as the project meets multi‑lane criteria.  This development will be limited, as they said, to a maximum 146 two‑way unadjusted p.m. peak hour trips. 
That concludes my presentation.  I do have, as you know, a number of experts here.  There's probably going to be some questions that I can't answer, and we'll rely on the experts.  Happy to answer any questions you have.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  We'll go to questions from the Planning Commission.  Ned?
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Mr. Mulhere, I see that on the south setback there's a request to reduce it from 100 to 60 feet, and as partially compensating for that I see that the buffer would be increased from 15 to 20 feet.  It's not a one‑for‑one offset.  Are you confident that the neighbors are not opposed to that?
MR. MULHERE:  We didn't have any opposition to that issue.  There were questions ‑‑ I didn't mention ‑‑ thanks for reminding me ‑‑ that we did have ‑‑ over the last two years or so that we've been working on this and with all those amendments that we've made, we've had the neighbors in probably three or four meetings.  There were always questions about how the connecting internal Siena Lakes Drive would function, and there were always questions about when the county was going to make improvements to Orange Blossom which, by the way, there is no ‑‑ and Trinity can speak to that issue.  There is no time frame for that at this point in time.
But, generally, the question centered on, as much as possible, remaining true to the conditions that were placed on the original master plan, which I believe we have done.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  So there was no opposition to the ‑‑ 
MR. MULHERE:  Not to my knowledge.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  ‑‑ construction? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  On that same thought, that reservation is still owned by you all, right?
MR. MULHERE:  Correct.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  So, really, your setback is 100 feet still? 
MR. MULHERE:  Correct; yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  So you're not changing your setback.  The county's just taken 40 feet of it for a right‑of‑way if they ‑‑ it's reserved for that if they want it, but your setback's 100 feet.
MR. MULHERE:  It is.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But it would be 60 feet from the future right‑of‑way reservation.
MR. MULHERE:  That's correct.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  If they take the right‑of‑way.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  That clarifies it.  Thank you.
MR. MULHERE:  Thank you.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Then my next question has to do with actual height of the three over‑parking buildings at the ILAs.  And I believe that's 60 feet actual height; is that correct? 
MR. MULHERE:  I'm going to get to that.  Sorry.  I know it's in here.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  ILUs.
MR. MULHERE:  Let me just look here.  I'll tell you; 60 feet.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  Is that going to be in the PUD? 
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.  
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  It will? 
MR. MULHERE:  It is.  It is in the PUD.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  Good.
MR. MULHERE:  It's on Page 4, which is the development standards of the PUD.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  That's good.  
Then with respect to the NIM, throughout the NIM there was a failure ‑‑ repeated failure ‑‑ repeating failure for people to identify themselves except, oddly enough, the residents.  They were pretty religious about doing so.  
Now, Bob, I know your voice but, still, some people don't.  And there was a gentleman by the name of Barry who did not introduce himself or mention his name before speaking.
MR. MULHERE:  Thank you.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Going forward, if you would try to adhere to that, it's just helpful.
MR. MULHERE:  Yeah, I appreciate that.  And I strive to remind people to do that.  We've got a little bit better system in place, at least at Hole Montes now, so hopefully you'll see an improvement moving forward.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Actually, that duty ought to fall on our staff to make sure the NIM is properly maintained.  That's why they're there.  So maybe if the staff folks could sure ‑‑ make sure to remind people of that if they're not doing it.
MR. MULHERE:  I'm the most guilty, though, I have to admit.  In the heat of the moment in the meeting I forget to say ‑‑ you know, I do tell them at the beginning, please introduce yourself, where you live, where you're from, who you're representing, but people forget.  And I'll try to do a better job.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Thank you. 
There was a lady at the NIM who raised a concern about the flooding on Orange Blossom Drive.
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  And I wanted to hear a little more from you about the extent, if any, to which this project will make that situation worse.
MR. MULHERE:  So I really appreciate that question.  I'm going to let Terry ‑‑ because he's got so much experience in this area, and he would be the better expert to explain.
MR. COLE:  Good morning.  Terry Cole, for the record.
I actually designed Orange Blossom Drive from Airport to First Baptist Church Naples probably about 20 years ago.  And I'm a member of the church, a very active member, and I've been traveling that road probably a few times a week for 17 years.  My wife also works there every day.  
I'm not personally aware of any flooding problems along that section between Airport going east to Livingston with the exception there probably could have been an isolated incidence of a clogged catch basin, which I'm not aware of.  
I am aware that there have been flooding problems to the west of Airport along Orange Blossom going over toward Goodlette.  And, in fact, I know they've done recent repaving.  I've not familiar with any stormwater improvements they may have done.  
I will mention also that when we designed ‑‑ can we go to the overall ‑‑
MR. MULHERE:  What do you want? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  You'll have to bring that handheld mic closer to you when you talk, too, Terry.
MR. COLE:  Okay.  Thank you.
MR. MULHERE:  They're not going to see you point to the TV.
MR. COLE:  When I designed Orange Blossom Drive, somewhere about right in here there's a driveway with the landscaping company on the south side approximately in this location.  Everything to the east of that point drains into the First Baptist Church water management system and ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  You mean St. Katherine's or First Baptist? 
MR. COLE:  No.  First Baptist Church.  Everything along Orange Blossom Drive right‑of‑way ‑‑ everything from about this point in the Orange Blossom Drive right‑of‑way drains east into this lake here as part of the First Baptist Church water management system.  
Historically, the Stoneburners ‑‑ Stoney's Citrus Groves was in this area here, and they had the only barn here where they had their citrus sales, and they had the you pick ‑‑ you could drive through their groves.  All of that drained to the east into the I‑75 canal drainage system, ultimately.
And so when we designed and permitted this 20 years ago, we made provisions to drain all of the Orange Blossom Drive right‑of‑way, including future four‑laning, into the First Baptist Church system.  And then from about this point here to the west, it had water‑quality treatment before it drained into the Airport Road drainage system.
So I just wanted to point out that there are provisions for four‑laning Orange Blossom Drive in the future.  
This intersection and those improvements will have to be further addressed, but I just wanted to give you that as a little bit of background.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Thank you for that history.  
The lady and then two other spokespeople at the NIM, they were talking specifically about Orange Blossom Drive east of Airport, and they said something to the effect that it doesn't take much of a rain to cause flooding right there.  
So whatever system you put in, I'm sure it was a good one, but it perhaps is not functioning as well as one might have hoped or maybe it's clogged. 
My real question, though, goes to what the Siena developers are going to do to assure that they don't make the situation worse.   
MR. COLE:  And we will ask the contractor to check those drainage basins.  There has been construction work, of course, going on at the site, and we'll check the storm ‑‑ best management practice procedures and elements that are in place and have them check and make sure there's no clogging along Orange Blossom.  
Living ‑‑ excuse me ‑‑ Siena Lakes ‑‑ I want to go back to the other site plan, Bob.  That's fine.
The additional approximately six acres, these two lakes are going to be part of the water management system with the Greek Orthodox church to the west, and there will be a Water Management District permit modification to incorporate these into their system and, basically, this area along here, the buildings ‑‑ anything from the buildings is going to be draining to the east, including this lake will be draining to the east into the Siena Lakes stormwater management system. 
Bob, can I go to that other slide.  Okay.  Thank you.  
So the Siena Lakes water management system drains into the church through this drainage outfall pipe, and none of Orange Blossom Drive drains through Siena Lakes, and Siena Lakes is not going to impact Orange Blossom Drive's water management as well.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  That's what I wanted to hear you say.  Okay.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Could I just make a quick observation? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Of course.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  I live in Lakeside, for maybe 15 years now, and my parents lived there before that, and I've been going in and out of there since the place was built.
I have never seen Orange Blossom east of Airport flood ever, and I travel that road all the time.  I bicycle that road all the time.   
Correct me, that road slopes ‑‑ two lanes slope in one direction, right? 
MR. COLE:  That's correct.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  The catch basin's only on one side.  It's not crowned in the middle.  Because when you do the other two lanes, you were going to put the other two lanes in the other direction.
MR. COLE:  Correct. 
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Transportation, tell me, are they ever going to build those other two lanes?  Is there any plan to do that?  I thought I saw her here, but I guess not.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Transportation likes to hide out in the hall until they're needed.
MS. SCOTT:  Good morning.  For the record, Trinity Scott, Transportation planning manager for Collier County.
I'm hiding in the hall because I can spread out.  I've got files everywhere.  
In our current Capital Improvement Program, we do actually have the widening programmed; however, in the upcoming budget cycle we have actually recommended to the Board that they pull the four‑laning of the roadway out.  So what's adopted today does show it, but what we're recommending to the Board is not to four‑lane at this time.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  At this time? 
MS. SCOTT:  At this time.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Or ever? 
MS. SCOTT:  At this time.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Okay. 
MS. SCOTT:  I mean, we're still working with the developer to reserve the right‑of‑way for future ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Has anybody ever told you about flooding in that section? 
MS. SCOTT:  No.  And, actually, I was listening and instant messaging our stormwater staff.  They have no knowledge either, as well as our road maintenance staff, but I have asked them to go out and see if they can look at the catch basins and see if anything's clogged.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  We used to prepare flooding maps for FEMA, and none of those maps showed any flooding in there.  So whoever ‑‑ maybe they confused east to west, I don't know.  But you're right, west of Airport, Orange Blossom floods all the time horribly, and I don't know if that's been cleared up or not.
MS. SCOTT:  I'll double‑check.  I specifically asked about that.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Well, good luck. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  The thing I'd like to comment, we have a lot of times comments from the public about flooding.  It's a natural reaction to a lot of water in Florida.  And if you haven't been here for a long period of time, you might not recognize that.  
Inches and inches of water can come down quickly.  The road system's built to take that water away.  It just doesn't happen instantly.  So periodically you'll be driving through bigger puddles of water, especially during a downpour, than you will if you've just given a little bit of time to percolate.  And I don't know how fast the runoff ‑‑ I know that, Terry, when you designed roads for me, they were ‑‑ we had four ‑‑ two lanes like this on each side.  One lane even during higher rain event would be semi under ponding water while it drained off, and I imagine the same situation occurs here.  
Is that the case?  I mean, how long do you expect the water to remain during a fairly substantial downfall? 
MR. COLE:  I would say not more than half an hour.  Typically we design roads for a 10‑year one‑hour storm, which is 3.3 inches per hour.  Now, of course, we've had some intensities greater than that.  It's very uncommon, but there have been times it's done that.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  The RCP, you put in for this when they built it, since they anticipated the four lanes, and you've got two lanes flowing one way.  That was ‑‑ all that's capacity that's needed for now and for the future.  So it's actually taking all that will be needed for that road system to the effect that we've got today as far as the two lanes go.
MR. COLE:  Correct.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So you'll put another RCP in in the future, or are you going to just connect to the one you've got and it's oversized for ‑‑ 
MR. COLE:  We would connect to the one we have.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So the one you've got's oversized?  
(Simultaneous crosstalk.) 
MR. COLE:  It was oversized for the future but ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So instead of two lanes, it's going to ‑‑ that RCP there today is set up for four lanes.  So its dispersion rate's even faster than it will be under a four‑lane condition.
MR. COLE:  Yes.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Yeah, but there is one ‑‑ there's a ‑‑ besides the intensity ‑‑ and you talked 3.3 inches an hour, which is like, what, nine‑tenths in a 15‑minute span.  They have something called time of concentration.  People's eyes start to glaze over when you start talking water management.  But that's the time it takes for the peak of the storm to hit the catch basin.  
And, you know, it takes a while for that large amount.  And if the storm lasts ‑‑ if it's like a 15‑minute, which is fairly long.  If the storm lasts 15 minutes and it drops an inch of rain, that's a rate of four inches an hour.  And that gutter is sloped at a certain grade not meant to take that amount of water that fast.  
So if you get a real downpour real quick, it can overcome everything, and you get temporary flooding.  And, you know, these people ‑‑ you've got to go there right when the window hits, and then you file a complaint the road flooded, but it really didn't.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That's what I was getting at.  So thank you.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Thank you for that discussion.  It was helpful for me.  
MS. SCOTT:  In an abundance of caution, we will go out and just make sure that we don't have anything that's clogged.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Do you video those pipes periodically to see if they've got sediment collecting in them? 
MS. SCOTT:  Yes, but, as you know, stormwater is underfunded, so probably not as regularly as we'd like to.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Thank you.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Trinity, before you go back to your work area, in the NIM, the gentleman by the name of Barry indicated that Erickson is trying to accelerate the plan that I guess has now been tabled and also Erickson was bearing or willing to bear part of the cost of widening.  So in spite of that, in spite of the willingness to share part of the cost, it's still being taken off the table? 
MS. SCOTT:  Yes.  As ‑‑ we do our Annual Update and Inventory Report on an annual basis and, really, the traffic just hasn't grown on that segment of roadway as we had anticipated.  
So we are still working with them to reserve the right‑of‑way so that in the future it could do so.  They were willing to advance it more so to have the construction activity ‑‑ if we were going to be building to have that construction activity done before their opening.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Thank you.  The next ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Back ‑‑ while you're here.
MS. SCOTT:  Uh‑huh.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  You just hit on something that was going to be at least one of my transportation questions, so we'll catch you while you're here.  In the transportation table that was in the staff report, Orange Blossom Drive, the road link between west of Airport ‑‑ west of Airport‑Pulling Road, the 2017 AUIR remaining capacity was 641, Level of Service B.  The 2018 AUIR remaining capacity is 781.  Why ‑‑ I mean, it's rare for a road system to get better in Collier County, so could you explain to me why this one's better and why don't we do that to all the others? 
MS. SCOTT:  People's travel ‑‑ we look at the AUIR on an annual basis, and people change their travel patterns.  And so the background traffic, which is kind of the basis ‑‑ and then we add the trip bank onto that.  The background traffic actually went down on that specific segment.  That's why you see a reduction, because the capacity stays the same, but the actual background traffic, they divert it to another segment.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, that's a decent amount of additional capacity.  It's like 20 or 25 percent.  So I just thought that was an anomaly for Collier County to have a road improve when ‑‑ with more intensity we've had across this county, I thought everything would be worse.
MS. SCOTT:  The other thing to look at is the 20 or 25 percent when you're looking at ‑‑ I believe that roadway segment had about a 20 percent decrease.  When you're looking at ‑‑ it carries, I think, about a thousand vehicles.  Twenty or 30 vehicles is a larger percentage for that particular roadway segment, which the layperson wouldn't notice.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Is this part of the TCMA; do you know? 
MS. SCOTT:  I believe it is.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So the benefit of this road's better performance is going to offset the negative concerns we have on other roads like Immokalee and places like that, because they're all kind of ‑‑ 
MS. SCOTT:  Yes, we look at the ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  ‑‑ amalgamated together.
MS. SCOTT:  We look at the areawide overall performance of the segments.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Unbelievable.  Okay.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Well, I had noticed that, too, and that's why I didn't have a problem or question about traffic, so that is the ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That actually created a problem for me.  And, Karl, have you got a followup? 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  I could lend potential anecdotal insight into how the traffic on that segment might have reduced in one way.  It's useful as a cut‑through if you're coming Airport north and you want to go over to Livingston and get on Vanderbilt heading east. 
And ‑‑ but because traffic backs up so badly on Livingston to turn right onto Vanderbilt Beach heading north, it's no longer ‑‑ like, I used to do that, and I would cut over Orange Blossom, and I've stopped doing that, because you wait too long in line on Livingston onto get Vanderbilt Beach.  So now I go up to Vanderbilt Beach and straight through the light, which is quicker.  So it supports what you're saying ‑‑ 
MS. SCOTT:  Right.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  ‑‑ that there are ‑‑ I think it's all interconnected.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay, thank you.  
Go ahead, Ned.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  The same ‑‑ the same speaker who mentioned the flooding, which I think we've disposed of ‑‑ I'm certainly satisfied with the answers and discussion we've had about flooding, but she also talked about the 6‑foot wall, and she asked for consideration of an 8‑foot wall on the south side.  I'd like to know a little bit about your plans.  Because, Bob, you said we'll take that into consideration.
MR. MULHERE:  And we did ‑‑ but I'm a little confused, because I thought ‑‑ I'm sorry.  I thought the comment that the woman made at the neighborhood information meeting related to the wall on the north side.  There is an existing wall there.  
The wall on the south side isn't even on our property.  It's across Orange Blossom Drive.  It's within the development here on the edge of the right‑of‑way about two feet off the sidewalk.  When that was built, the developer built the buildings very close to the edge of the right‑of‑way and put in a 6‑foot wall.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  So there is a 6‑foot wall there? 
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  And it's not yours? 
MR. MULHERE:  It's not ours. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  That answers it.  I just assumed that she was on the south side because she had also ‑‑ she had made the same comments about Orange Blossom road.
MR. MULHERE:  My recollection was she was talking about a wall along the north, which we have a ‑‑ I'm not sure the height.  I think it's a 6‑foot ‑‑ a 6‑foot wall. 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Okay.  Bob, there were actually two discussions that ‑‑ I'm looking at the NIM, the meeting notes.  There was one about the wall at Walden Oaks, which was a future requirement, but a lady did ask about a wall on the ‑‑ in proximity to the neighboring communities.  And you did say we would take it under advisement.
MR. MULHERE:  We did.  But we've enhanced landscaping.  We don't see the need to ‑‑ you know, there's an existing wall there.  We don't see the need to increase that to eight feet.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I think ‑‑ I take your answer.  I accept that, yeah.
Where do I go here?
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  While he's looking that up, do you guys know how wide Orange Blossom Drive is currently? 
MR. MULHERE:  I'm sure we do.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I don't mean the asphalt.  I mean the right‑of‑way.  The current existing right‑of‑way without the reservation.
MR. MULHERE:  Sixty, I believe.  Trinity would know, but she figures we won't call on her if she's not in the room.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No, I think she went out to get the number.  Okay.  Well, she'll come back with it.  We'll see where it is.
MR. MULHERE:  I believe it's 60.
MR. COLE:  It's 60.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  So if you've got 60 feet ‑‑ see, I knew she was ‑‑ she wouldn't abandon us.  She's back.  Sixty plus the 40 would be 100, plus another 60 before your building.  So you're 160 feet from the ‑‑ 
MR. MULHERE:  Correct.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  ‑‑ edge of right‑of‑way on the south side of Orange Blossom Drive already.
MR. MULHERE:  Yeah.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So I'm not ‑‑ that's why I was surprised when the question was raised, because I don't know what it would help to have a wall on the south side of your project, but I understand probably on the north side where there ‑‑ but there's also a road on the north side for a good part of it.
MR. MULHERE:  People always ask and, you know, I understand that.  And, you know, I guess I'd be planting some hedges in my backyard.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Any other questions from the Planning Commission?  
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Why don't we go to the Deviation No. 4.  I have a question there.  In that deviation on the second line, you added a couple words, but you crossed out three words that I need to stay in, and it says, to allow a private roadway with a width of 30 feet within, and then you crossed out "and access easement along" and then left the words "the western" and then changed the word "portion" of the property.  
The last sentence says, "This easement will provide two lanes for access to the lake side of Naples at Citrus Gardens PUD."  Well, because that last sentence refers to an easement, and you've crossed out the language referencing it as an access easement, I think it should stay in.  It doesn't hurt anything.
MR. MULHERE:  I have no problem with that.  That makes sense. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  On Deviation No. 5, on the last part of it you've crossed out the ‑‑ talking about the east side of the access road in the last line and substituted the words "Siena Lakes Drive."  Could you just make a note "as noted on the master plan"? 
MR. MULHERE:  Sure.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Because I don't ‑‑ I want to make sure everybody recognizes it for that north/south link.   
MR. MULHERE:  Yep.   
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And I have a few more.  Let me move into them.  On the ‑‑ under your permitted use, under Exhibit A, the second paragraph talks about the mix of types of senior living facilities; 431 independent, 47 ALF, and 30 skilled nursing?  That comes, I believe, to a total of 508.  
Could you weave the total in that paragraph somewhere appropriately so that we know, looking at it quickly, you've got 508 units there of some type.
MR. MULHERE:  Sure.  So I think we just ‑‑ under principal uses, we add a sentence that says, the PUD allows up to 508 units, comma, as follows, colon.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That's fine.  That will work.  I just want to make sure ‑‑ it's easier than having to total them up each time.  
I also talked to Mr. Yovanovich about the second page in your ‑‑ this one was some old language, but it needed ‑‑ while we're correcting things, let's clarify it.  B says indoor accessory uses, comma, structures and amenities.  And that same beginning occurs on C and D.  It keeps saying outdoor accessory uses, miscellaneous accessory uses, and then, of course, the indoor one, and then the comma, and each one of them says structures and amenities.  I don't think we need the word "structures and amenities."
MR. MULHERE:  I agree.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And under the first one, B1, the following uses shall comprise a minimum of 72,000 square feet.  Now, this is interior accessory uses.  Your maintenance building, I don't think you're going to build that interior to one of your other buildings.  I think it's going to be its own stand‑alone.  So that should probably move down to C, which is an outdoor accessory use.
MR. MULHERE:  Yeah, we'll do that.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And then when we get to the Development Standards Table, a clarification.  I understand now your setbacks.  The internal drive setback number you have in the middle of that table, is that ‑‑ what's an internal drive on this project?  Is Siena Lakes Drive considered an internal drive?   
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.  We could parenthetically add that.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I just think you might want to be clear, because if it goes through an SDP process and it comes up at that point, it might be harder to understand and ‑‑ 
MR. MULHERE:  Yep.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  ‑‑ clarify.  The ‑‑ and this is probably ‑‑ I think you've already answered this, and Terry may have.  Your footnotes, you've got two of them, 1 and 4, that refer to the right‑of‑way reservation.  The ultimate number of lanes on Orange Blossom is four.  Is that what I heard? 
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So the width is going to limit it to that.
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Let's move to that Exhibit C2 of your master plan, and that's the one, Bob, where we talk about the percentage of open space that seems to be ‑‑ 
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  ‑‑ all over the board.  You've got actually three different numbers.
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I don't care how you do it, just pick a number and make it one so when it goes through for review you don't have to worry about it at that point, because now you're going to be cleaning up a table in a PUD, and I don't think you need to do that.
MR. MULHERE:  Paul and I talked about it.  We believe it's 63.  We'll verify that, and we'll make sure that it's the same in all three locations ‑‑   
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay. 
MR. MULHERE:  ‑‑ or two of the three, whatever ‑‑ because the land‑use summary paragraph at the top, that number is different because we excluded Siena Lakes Drive from the open‑space calculation, but I'll make sure that it matches.  Thank you.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  If we go to Page 18 of the PUD ‑‑ 
MR. MULHERE:  Okay. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  ‑‑ payment of road impact fees.  Are they ‑‑ is there some reason you're not paying road impact fees like ordinary folks?  Are you just ‑‑ I know it's old language, but we have an opportunity to clean it up, and I just want to make sure we catch everything that we need to.
MR. YOVANOVICH:  We had agreed to pipeline payments of road impact fees, and that's why this paragraph was originally in there.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So the pipeline's still in effect after ‑‑ even though it's a decade old.  Okay.  That's really pipelining it.
MR. YOVANOVICH:  Well, it was tied to an agreement that was reached with the county.  Not only us.  There were several property owners on that intersection.  
Am I remembering it correctly, Trinity?  
So we had committed to that.  I'm happy to go back to not having to front‑load those, but we're already ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But I'm wondering, if we're not going to build the four‑laning, why are we worried about it?  I'm not trying to give anything away.  I'm just trying to understand the practicality of it.  And you weren't there yesterday, so I couldn't give you a heads‑up as to what I was going to ask.
MS. SCOTT:  That's okay.  Once again, Trinity Scott, Transportation Planning.  Yes, I was in Missouri yesterday.  
Road impact fees could still be utilized for the capacity adding for the intersection improvement.  There is a need to do some intersection improvements at Orange Blossom and Airport, just not the widening.  So any capacity adding those impact fees could be placed towards that.  
And then also, to answer your last question, I have to thank Mike Bosi, because my computer decided to reboot.  Sixty feet is the right‑of‑way of Orange Blossom Drive.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Thank you.  And don't go away.  
Next question, same section of that PUD.  The title of Item 6 says, "Payment of road impact fees."  A and B makes sense then.  C, tell me how that fits.  That's not an impact fee.
MS. SCOTT:  It is not.  So when we do an intersection improvement, some of those are just operational improvements that are not necessarily capacity adding.  Capacity adding is when you increase the capacity of the intersection and, ultimately, the link.  
So they will pay their fair share of those that would not be impact‑fee eligible.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I understand, but it's not an impact fee.  It's under a paragraph that's titled "payment for road impact fees." 
MS. SCOTT:  Oh, yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So why don't we just move it to its own stand‑alone paragraph as a developer commitment.
MS. SCOTT:  I have no objection to that.
MR. YOVANOVICH:  How about we just say road‑related fees.  Strike the word "impact."
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Payment of road‑related impacts.  I don't care.  Whatever you want.  I just ‑‑ it doesn't fit is all I'm ‑‑ 
MR. YOVANOVICH:  I understand, Mr. Strain.
MS. SCOTT:  Yep.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And I think, Trinity, I don't have to bother you again for a few moments at least.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Could I just ‑‑
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Go ahead.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  If you look at the map that's on there, the bottom right‑hand corner, you see where the road goes from 100‑foot right‑of‑way to at Walden Oaks it goes to a narrower right‑of‑way.
MS. SCOTT:  Yes.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Okay.  For some reason the south property line there seems to jog five feet in toward the road where it goes past Walden Oaks, and the Property Appraiser says that that right‑of‑way is only 55 foot.  You may want to check that out.  It's normally 60 foot.
MS. SCOTT:  Yes.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  But it definitely shows a jog there, so you may want to check that.
MS. SCOTT:  We'll go back and check.  A few years back the Property Appraiser updated things.  And if it's an easement, sometimes it doesn't show up.  But I will have our right‑of‑way folks check it.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Yeah, because that wall fits right on the right‑of‑way; otherwise, that wall is in your right‑of‑way so ‑‑ 
MS. SCOTT:  Yes.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Yeah, thanks.
MS. SCOTT:  We will double‑check that.  Thank you.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Bob, on page ‑‑ the next page, No. 10, it says, the CCRC shall be required to provide pedestrian and vehicle connections.  It really should say developer or whatever name we've given it ‑‑ yeah, owner/developer; however that should be connotated, it's ‑‑ I don't know who the CCRC really is.
MR. MULHERE:  Good point.  I think, Heidi, owner?  I think so.   
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  On the next page, which is Page 20, Items 7 and 8, No. 7 says, "each unit shall be equipped with pull cords designed to notify emergency service providers."  Pull cords probably went out with regular light bulbs years ago.  I don't mind you leaving that in, but I'd like to say "or equivalent" to give you the benefit of being modernized.
MR. MULHERE:  Yeah.  It's probably a button.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Whatever they have. 
MR. MULHERE:  Okay.  I've got it.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Maybe it's Alexa.
MR. MULHERE:  Okay.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  By the way, do you know you can whisper to Alexa now?  This is really a trip.  If you don't want to wake somebody up and tell her to do something in the room, you can whisper to her, and she'll whisper back.  It's just amazing the things they can do.  So who knows, you might have a device near you can whisper to.
MR. MULHERE:  Does she cook? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Not yet.  Boy, would that take a different approach to things.  
Number 8, Bob, is there something special about this kind of a project that goes beyond federal and state laws?  Because this one says you have to design to accommodate residents with physical impairments as required by building codes in federal law and regulation, but you have to do that anyway, right? 
MR. MULHERE:  You have to do that anyway.  I think that's a bit redundant.  I don't know why ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  If you don't mind taking that out, I don't see the necessity to it unless some else does.   
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Covenant to comply with the law.
MR. YOVANOVICH:  Mr. Strain, I'm not sure that if you build an independent living unit under the law you're required to have it ‑‑ the intention of this provision was if moved into an independent living unit, you wouldn't be required to move out of that unit because it wasn't able to be retrofitted because your circumstances changed, like lowering of countertops or whatever you would have to do under the handicapped code.  
So this provision was inserted ‑‑ and I know I'm speaking against our interest, but this was inserted so people would be able to age in place without having to be relocated, because I don't think there was a legal requirement that units be built that way.  
So that's why that provision was in there.  And I think Scott's confirmed that there's nothing in the law that would require an independent living unit to accommodate changes in the future for independent individual residents.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So what you're saying is, by this paragraph, your applicant, your client, if someone is aging in an independent living unit and they need wheelchair access throughout the unit and it's not currently to those standards, they will go in and change ‑‑ revamp that entire unit even though that unit ‑‑ if I'm not mistaken, with their facility, the buy‑in buys the person the privilege to stay there, basically, for the remainder of their life, but it doesn't go to the person's estate.  So then they re‑inherit the unit with all these changes that they've now got to bring be somebody else into.  Is that how it works? 
MR. YOVANOVICH:  It says it has to be designed to accommodate the ability to do that.  And that's what it ‑‑ and that ‑‑ and I remember negotiating this many, many years ago when Commissioner Coyle was on the Commission, because there was a desire to ‑‑ if someone wanted to stay in their unit, it needed to be designed for the ability to make changes to that unit.  It doesn't discuss who's got to pay for those changes.  It does discuss that it needs to be designed in a way for that to happen, because you didn't want to force a resident to move because it wasn't properly designed to let ‑‑ in case you go from not needing a wheelchair to needing a wheelchair.  
That's where that came from.  I mean, we'll ‑‑
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No, no.  Out of an abundance of caution, we'll leave it ‑‑ let's leave it.  I just was trying to clean the document up since we opened it up.  That's all.
MR. YOVANOVICH:  I mean ‑‑ yeah, we'll take it out, but I just wanted you to understand the ‑‑ you were assuming that it was already covered somewhere else.
(Simultaneous crosstalk.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Right.  That was the question. 
MR. YOVANOVICH:  We talked about this yesterday.  I don't want that ‑‑ I don't want you to have the wrong assumption when you're saying just delete that.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  All right.  So we'll leave that one in, and you guys argued on behalf against yourself really well, Richard.  Thank you.
MR. YOVANOVICH:  I wasn't arguing against myself.  I was just providing truth in advertising.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Let's see you remember your position.  
Under the environmental section, environmental ‑‑ No. 2, someone's got to explain that to me, because there is ‑‑ I thought there was a listed species survey in this staff report.  I'm not sure what the soil testing issue is.  But if you're not required to do that now, then why are you being required do it and nobody else?  And if you are required to do it and it's in the code, then why is it being added to the PUD?
MR. MULHERE:  Okay.  So good question.  We did do a listed species survey ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I saw it.  I thought ‑‑ 
MR. MULHERE:  ‑‑ about eight months ago.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.
MR. MULHERE:  But we haven't done soil testing that's required by the LDC to my knowledge, and so ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But it's required by the LDC. 
MR. MULHERE:  It is if you had previous history of agricultural operations.  So, obviously, we'll have to do that.  It's already required, so I don't know why ‑‑ if we haven't done it, it's required, so...
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That's what I'm saying.  Why don't we ‑‑ unless staff has a reason this has got to stay there, it's already covered one way or the other, so let's strike it.  Why keep putting stuff in PUDs we don't need? 
MR. MULHERE:  I'm not sure ‑‑ it went in the first one, so we kept it in this one.  But we've struck through it.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, it's new language.  So under the architectural review, can't that be struck as well?  Because ‑‑ 
MR. MULHERE:  Yeah.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  ‑‑ that's covered in the LDC as well.
MR. MULHERE:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Let me see.  
I see Norm sitting there.  Boy, I hope I have something for Norm.  And, honestly, I actually understood what he wrote this time.  So I don't have ‑‑ you see he's so intense I can't figure out how we got to some of the places.  But, Norm, I don't have any questions on your TIS this time.  So ‑‑ and that's it, thank you, from me. 
Anybody else have anything?  
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  We'll go with the staff report, Nancy. 
MS. GUNDLACH:  Good morning, Commissioners.  For the record, I'm Nancy Gundlach, principal planner with the Zoning Division.  
And staff is recommending approval of this petition as it is consistent with the Growth Management Plan and the Land Development Code. 
If you have any questions, it would be our pleasure to answer them.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Nancy, did you hear any of the ‑‑ go ‑‑ discussions back and forth that would change your position?
MS. GUNDLACH:  No.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Any members of the Planning Commission have any questions of staff?
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Thank you.  With that, we'll hear any public speakers that want to talk.  Anybody registered, Ray? 
MR. BELLOWS:  No one has registered.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Anybody ‑‑ member of the public here who would like to speak on this item?
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Hearing none, I don't think you guys need a rebuttal.  
And we'll move into discussion before a motion.  That will close the public hearing, and I'll go to the Planning Commission.  You guys have any questions, concerns?  We heard the comments made.  
As far as ‑‑ I'll read anything ‑‑ I don't really have any ‑‑ everything we talked about is the kind of stuff we normally put ‑‑ we fix as we go along.  So I don't see any specific stipulations needed.  It's pretty straightforward.  Anybody want to make a motion? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I'll make a motion to approve PUDA‑PL20180001174.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Subject to the clarifications we just put on record? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Yes.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  I'll second.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Seconded by Stan.  Discussion?  
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  All in favor, signify by saying aye.  
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Aye.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Anybody opposed? 
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Motion carries 5‑0. 
Thank you all very much for attending.
MR. MULHERE:  Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Stan?
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Wasn't a member of the public sworn in? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah, but they don't have to speak if they've got their questions resolved during the discussion.  So I think that's what happened, Stan. 
That takes us ‑‑ we're going to ‑‑ the Allura project was continued.  So we will move to the ‑‑ we'll start the next item and take a break at 10:30 for about 15 minutes and then continue after that.
***The next item up is PL20180000261/CPSP‑2018‑2.  It's the Golden Gate Area Master Plan restudy.  This previously had come to us on transmittal.  Now it's here for adoption.  
And, Mike, I guess it looks like you're coming up to start it out? 
MR. BOSI:  Mike Bosi, Planning and Zoning Director.  And, actually, Anita's going to walk you through.  What I'm going to do is bring up the agenda packet for the visualizer.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  And I ‑‑ I'd like to suggest that we would want to ‑‑ there's three sections of this now:  The city, the urban, and the rural.  I'd like to discuss them separately since we are ‑‑ you did a good job on providing the breakdowns and red ‑‑ yeah, redline and underline, so it makes it easier to understand the sections better.  And if you don't mind ‑‑ and you can ‑‑ if you have some general comments, fine.  If not and you want to focus on the city first, that would be probably a logical place to start.
MS. JENKINS:  Sure.  There is one before that, the Golden Gate Area Master Plan element, and then the three sub‑elements.  So if you have ‑‑ the element really just includes the introduction and overview.  So if you have any questions about that, we could look at that; otherwise, we can go right into the Golden Gate City sub‑element.  
And, Commissioners, I would ask that, because we have different formats in our documents, that ‑‑ if you notice the footer at the bottom of these documents, which refers to double underline, double strikethrough, underline/strikethrough, there's a page number right above that footnote.  And so when we talk about those, if you could ‑‑ when we're tracking along, just reference that page number so we're all on the ‑‑ I'm on the same page with you.  It will be easier.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  In the general one, I do have ‑‑ first of all, I think we're going to have to take these in two different sections.  The document you sent us most recently, which is the redline/strikethrough, I'd like to walk through that for all three or four sections.  And then I believe there's nine separate ordinances that we're being asked to adopt.  I'd like to then, prior to adopting those, discuss any comments on each one of those.  Some may be slightly ‑‑ I tried to eliminate the duplications from mine to those, but ‑‑ so there might be some duplication, but at least we can walk through separately so we know what we're voting on on each one. 
And the first thing, I want to go back before we go into the city, is under the general.  This exhibit, or these things that you gave us, this last packet, didn't include the maps that were attached.  And the map that's under the master plan element, the first piece, says, "Original Golden Gate Area Master Plan study areas."  That's No. ‑‑ Page No. 4.  
Now, I looked on the ordinance to find out what that map is, and it's not a map that's going to help anybody understand what this is about.  And I'd like to see a map that ‑‑ first of all, the study areas include Study Area 5, which is ‑‑ was actually dispensed with back in 2001 when I was chairman of that restudy at that time.  We ‑‑ it's no longing on the table.  It's been taken over by the State for water purification purposes and whatever recharge.
So rather than use a map that doesn't give us enough information as to what we're doing today, couldn't we take the map that provides information about the three areas ‑‑ the way they ‑‑ Golden Gate Estates is broken down as we're doing it today and make that an exhibit under III maps, triple 3 maps, for Page 4.
MS. JENKINS:  Sure.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That way, if someone readily wants to find out where the rural estates starts and stops, they could can look at that map, and the same for the city and the same for the urban area.  
And then that gets us into the Golden Gate City sub‑element.  And so ‑‑ I'm not sure how many ‑‑ all of them are a couple dozen pages or so.  Why don't we take them all at once.  And, Ned, do you want to start in? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Sure.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  How did I know that?
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I don't know.  
First of all, I want to thank staff for working with me on a one‑on‑one basis.  It was very useful; possibly not as useful as one ‑‑ that others might have thought, because although lots of my questions were answered ‑‑ and that was very helpful ‑‑ most of which I had were comments. 
And, of course, as Heidi had pointed out, those comments had to be brought back, you know, for the entire Planning Commission.  So ‑‑ but, nonetheless, it did reduce my number of comments by about half, so I appreciate that.  Thank you.
Let's see.  Oh, the other thing that I want to say, just as a preface, for some reason when I download and it converts to PDF, it cuts off the page numbers.  Now, I don't know if that's just me or if other people have that problem; the ones in the lower right. 
Now, I use PDF Expert, which renumbers it, and it tells me that there are 1,981 pages in the document, and it tells me what page I'm on.  That may or may not coordinate with the page number that you or Chairman Strain have.  So I'll try to refer to policy numbers and objectives and the like when I go through these.
MS. JENKINS:  And if you can see the little page number just above the footer, I think we could probably all see that page number as well as in each sub‑element.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  That's the one that disappears for me.
MS. JENKINS:  Oh, okay.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Yeah, for some reason.  I'm not sure why.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  She's talking about this number.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Oh, okay.  I have seven, in other words, on this ‑‑ okay.  Fine. 
Let me start then.  Policy 1.4.2 on Page 7, the strict enforcement.  I understand this is almost always a good idea, but is that exactly where the BCC is on the subject of short‑term rentals?  I just ‑‑ I don't know.
MS. JENKINS:  So we did not make any changes to that policy.  It was not something that came up through the public input.  But I can tell you when we were doing the workshops, Code Enforcement was always something that was brought to our attention, and that is something that the civic association in Golden Gate Estates (sic) discusses at each meeting that they have monthly.  So they're serious about code enforcement in that area, so we did not recommend any changes to that.  It does talk about ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I think you said the Golden Gate Estates discusses every ‑‑ 
MS. JENKINS:  Golden Gate City Civic Association.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  City, okay.
MS. JENKINS:  And the rural estates as well may discuss it.  I'm not sure if they ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But this is ‑‑ we're on the city piece, that's all.  I was just trying to make sure.
MS. JENKINS:  Right.  So the city civic association does have Code Enforcement at each meeting that they have, and they do discuss code enforcement.  So I think it's somewhat qualified to the strict enforcement of the things that they find as code issues.  But if that gives you pause, strict or not, you know, you can make that part of your motion.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Well, I don't feel that strongly about it.  But it just seems to me that the County Commission's policy, perhaps, is evolving, and we don't want something on the books that conflicts with where it appears to be going at present.  But I think I've said all I want to say about it, so that's fine.
Then on Policy 2.1.5, this is a consistency issue.  The word "established" is used when in other similar cases the word "initiated" is used.  And I think it gives staff more flexibility, and it's less of a hammer on staff to at least have "initiated" something rather than have gotten it completed within the time frame.  So I would recommend that you go with the word "initiated" rather than "established."  
Then I go to my Page 1,833.  In Policy 2.3.2 ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  What page are you on, Ned?
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Nine.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Page 9, okay.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Yeah.  And that is Policy 2.3.2.  I would like to add the word "safe" before the word "walkability" in the first sentence, because I just think it's important for us to show that we're thinking about that, and even more so when we come to bicycling, which I'll talk about when we come to that.  But I think it's important to acknowledge that safety can be a real issue and should be a word that's expressed in here.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, just out of curiosity, what do you think is safe?  I mean, they've got to protect them from the neighborhood or from the cars or from the ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Yeah, mostly the cars.  You know, it gets back to this concern I have, and I've expressed it a number of times about complete streets and getting everybody so close together that it poses a danger to pedestrians and bicyclists.  And I just think that that needs to be part of the equation, part of the analysis or the calculation when walkability is addressed, that the planners or the people who are executing on this plan are cognizant in an express way of looking out for safety.  It seems to me that that's kind of hard to argue against, but maybe I'm wrong.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I just wanted clarification. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  So that's something that I will, I guess, ask for at the end, or should I ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, this is the end.  I don't ‑‑ I mean, I'm assuming Anita's ‑‑ if I don't hear an objection from Anita, I'm assuming she's agreeing to make the change, and unless you hear objections from the rest of us, I might ‑‑ some of us might want clarification, like I just did.  I wasn't sure what kind of safety you're thinking of, and I wanted to understand your mindset in that regard to the area.
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  The reason the study was done for the city is for safety.  There is a walkability study for Golden Gate City.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Yeah.
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  That's the point.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Yeah.  So let's ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  But this is the ‑‑ I mean, I don't know that you have to say it, but ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I don't think it hurts, but then I don't know ‑‑ I mean, I'm not ‑‑ I don't know what it hurts to leave it like it is.  We don't ‑‑ we're not going to design something that's not safe.  It just doesn't make any sense.  If we did, the liability would be tremendous.  So even to think that's kind of ‑‑ by putting safe in here, it's almost telling us we're not going to be safe unless we write it in.  I don't necessarily agree that's needed, but it's not a ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  I think it might conflict sometimes if you can do something to make it ‑‑ there's a lot of issues in that area.  And if you can make it easier for them to walk in doesn't necessarily mean it's going to be as safe as you think it will, so ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So that's kind of why my question originally ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  You cross it off ‑‑ you can't do it because it's not safe.  I mean, there's a lot of area that was designed without sidewalks or safety, and there's the schools.  It's just hard to ‑‑ that's the whole reason the study was done.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I'm sorry.  Are you objecting to the inclusion of the word? 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  I don't think it's necessary.  That's all.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Ned, I know you work ‑‑ you focused on some of these, but what difference does it make?  We don't have ordinances and designs of anything that we're doing that's going to even consider that we're trying to do something that's not safe.  That's a given in all of our languages.  So by adding the word, I'm not sure ‑‑ that means ‑‑ would almost mean wherever we don't put that word in front of something that we're not considering safety.  This generality is good enough. 
I'm not against it.  I just don't know why we need it.  There's a difference there.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Well, when we get on bicycles I'm going to say ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, that one's going to be even touchier.  But bicycles ‑‑ we shouldn't even allow them on the road system, but that's another argument.
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Wooo.  Uh‑oh.  
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Well, I'm going to ask for it to be in there and if that ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Here comes Stan.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  I go to Page 17, and I have two points on this.  And I bring this up again.  This concept of neighborhood churches.  I know that that's to be deferred to the Land Development Code amendments, but it just seems to me to be ‑‑ unless we get some kind of an idea of how we're going to accomplish this lawfully and constitutionally, why don't we at least address this now is what I'm asking?  Neighborhood churches.  And I'd be glad to expand upon why I think that could be troublesome if anybody doesn't understand.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I think it needs to be in here.  I think it strongly needs to be in here, and I think this will give us the ability to define it in a manner that we won't be inundated by these churches that are really out of character for the communities they're being placed upon.  
And I've experienced it because I live out there, so has, I know, Karl, and a lot of us out there have this concern.  So this is the beginning of an ability to ‑‑ at least to put some mild control in in regards to how these are framed for the area they're in.  Mega‑churches just don't work in a neighborhood.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  And I do not disagree with you as a matter of my personal preference, but let's say that a church wants to hold a public meeting of some sort, and it is limited in ‑‑ or might arguably be limited in how widely it could advertise for attendance to that, whereas a nonchurch would not be limited because it's not considered a neighborhood venue.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I think you just gave a good reason why we shouldn't allow that in a neighborhood.  I mean, why would we want to make it a gathering place for a broader area when it's not designed to be that?  
These quiet neighborhoods, especially in the Estates, are not all set up for this.  
Mike?
MR. BOSI:  And ‑‑ Mike Bosi, again, Planning and Zoning director.  
This is one of the areas we did want to have a little bit conversation with the Planning Commission regarding the request to include neighborhood churches.  To define neighborhood churches as being a pertinent or provided for within the Estates was really initiated by the Estates Civic Association representing the rural estates.  
So this was one of the questions that we wanted to engage the Planning Commission.  Did we think that this qualification for neighborhood churches should be extended both to the urban estates as well as to Golden Gate City because of the unique characteristics of each of those geographic areas.  We've just applied them to each of the subareas.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I think that the characteristics are sufficiently different that we don't need the word here in application to the city or to the urban estates.  And, you're right, this came up because the president of the civic association raised it and seemed to have considerable support behind him for the uniqueness of the rural estates.  So it seems to me that this should probably come out here in any event.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, Anita, when you went to the stakeholders in the city, was this in there?
MS. JENKINS:  No, it was not in here.  This ‑‑ the neighborhood definition for churches came at the transmittal hearing for the Board of County Commissioners when Mr. Ramsey, representing the rural estates, handed a piece of paper to the Commission with a list of ‑‑ it seems like there was a search for "church," and every time they found that, they inserted it without the thought of, you know, is it in the city or the urban area. 
But staff would agree that the rural estates being represented by the civic association, it would be appropriate for it to be in rural estates, but that kind of extends their boundaries of their own membership to the city and the urban estates. 
So it was not in here when we went through the public participation process for the city or the urban area.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So you don't know if they're objecting to it or not? 
MS. JENKINS:  No.  There has been no contact from any of the representatives of the city or the urban area to object or support the word "neighborhood," but the staff would certainly support not having it in the city because of the different characteristics of the city.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And how is the characteristics of the city different in regards to whether it's a neighborhood church or a mega‑church as ‑‑ for a contrast? 
MS. JENKINS:  Right.  So the city is a more urban area where you would expect more urban services and a walkable area.  So they might need those services in closer proximity.  So the ‑‑ you know, the Catholic churches there that grows larger and larger and provides lots of services.  
So, I think, you know, it would behoove us to understand if that's really appropriate in the city with those different characteristics of an urban area and the opportunity to have a little bit more urban services in that area.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Anybody else? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I'd like to know what the County Attorney's Office has to say about that.  Not the urban/rural question, but just ‑‑ let's just talk about the rural estates and including it there.  Is that a constitutional issue?  Is it potentially so?  Is it something that we shouldn't worry about present time because we can deal with it later?  What's your position on that? 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Well, throughout the Golden Gate Estates elements ‑‑ I'm going to just group them all under that category ‑‑ there are ‑‑ there's neighborhood commercial, and there's limitations on the size of five acres or less for certain commercial.  
So I think we have established a neighborhood concept for commercial and, therefore, we can also establish a neighborhood, you know, for commercial ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  So size ‑‑ 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  ‑‑ for churches.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  ‑‑ of the establishment is what we're talking about as opposed to occupancy limitations? 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Well, I don't think it's been defined yet.  It's going to be defined when you go through the Land Development Code, and we'll be working closely with staff to make sure that we believe that what we've written is legally defensible.   
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  In that case ‑‑ go ahead.
MR. BOSI:  And I would echo the sentiment of the County Attorney.  And the lead that's provided for neighborhood commercial and the design of neighborhood commercial is in terms of the reach, the outreach in terms of which that commercial is designed to establish.  So the scope of that neighborhood commercial is much ‑‑ limited in terms of the overall size because it's only supporting a one‑to‑three‑mile radius in terms of where the customer base is designed from.
So the neighborhood church concept will follow that same type of lead that it's only designed for a specific radius of area and, therefore, the size and the overall capacity of the churches are commensurate with what we would expect for a limited scope of reach in terms of membership.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I understand your point.  And it could, I think, probably be addressed constitutionally in that fashion.  So we'll just ‑‑ I guess we'll have another bite at this apple when it's at Land Development Code, will we not?
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well ‑‑ but let's back up.  I mean, the city didn't ‑‑ wasn't approached with this from the stakeholder meetings.  You told me they just weren't.  They didn't ask for this.  So I kind of tend to agree with Anita that the neighborhood could be dropped from the city on the premise they're not involved in it.  It was from the Estates.  The Estates is the area that I know for a fact is being inundated with churches larger than should be necessarily out there attracting areas ‑‑ from other areas that are far beyond the neighborhood reach.  
If the city is an urban area and has a different content, and they haven't brought this issue up for themselves, I don't have a problem with dropping it, Ned.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I agree with the Chairman.
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  It should be dropped.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.  I mean, that's where I was going in asking the questions.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Yeah.  I would go farther, though, at least raise the question about the urban estates.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No.  Karl, do you guys like the churches in your neighborhood coming in like they are? 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Absolutely not.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No, I didn't think so.  None of us do, because the people are ‑‑ churches are seeing ‑‑ they want a cheap, large piece of land where you can build a big church.  Go to the rural ‑‑ to the Estates areas anywhere, and you can build a church there.  And that's fine.  But they're bringing in people from all over, and they're not neighborhood.  They're not ‑‑ their sizes are becoming really difficult to handle.  The volume of traffic is not a neighborhood traffic component at all.  
The hours of operation, the types of uses they're bringing in as far as special events, none of them are conducive to the neighborhoods to the extent they're now bringing them in at the sizes they're bringing them in.  And that's the issue we're trying to further ferret out when we come in for the LDC language. 
But, likewise, I would have to agree with Anita that I haven't heard the city make any comments about it at all.  I mean, that's a different animal.  That's one reason the city is separated out, and I think that's a good move.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  May I ask for a clarification, just to understand this? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Sure.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  I mean, in our ‑‑ I'll just say in the urban estates where I live, a lot of churches are very good neighbors.  I think what you're describing is more of a church that tends to be a mega‑church where they're really attracting a large group of people from a wide radius.  
Where in this master plan are mega‑churches intended to go?  What is the appropriate location for mega‑churches?  Or will it be defined from a standpoint of, you know, they're conditional uses based on the surrounding communities will define whether it's an appropriate location for a church that is not just a neighborhood church?  
MS. JENKINS:  Yeah.  So each church would have to go through the conditional‑use process where you would have all that information that you would be able to evaluate the surrounding conditions and if it's appropriate or not.  When we go through the Land Development Code to define neighborhood, what neighborhood is, it might have a limitation on the number of seats or the square footage or what other activities can be going on rather than just the service.  
So those things will be defined in the LDC, the criteria that would define neighborhood.  But what we're saying is, you know, we're trying to increase the level of service in Golden Gate City.  So you might want not to put those neighborhood restrictions in the city where the services would be more needed and ‑‑
COMMISSIONER FRY:  That makes sense to me.  In reference to Golden Gate City, that makes sense to me.  I guess my question is, is it inappropriate to have a mega‑church out Immokalee Road sitting on 20 acres where they're not surrounded by neighborhoods?  I'm just trying to understand. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah, that's ag zoning.  It's a different animal, yeah.  I mean, it's a ‑‑ however ‑‑ again, it would be a conditional use out there, so we ‑‑ that's what the conditional use is for is tailor it to the use applied to the area that's being asked for.  So that's how we would do it.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  So we are ‑‑ if we remove the word "neighborhood" from the Golden Gate City, that leaves it open for what type of churches can operate in the city? 
MS. JENKINS:  Correct.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  They'd still need a conditional use.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Still need a conditional use.  So they have to pass all of the current requirements and be compatible with the surrounding communities.
MS. JENKINS:  Right.  So if we define neighborhood church, for instance, as, you know, let's just say 250 seats ‑‑ I'm not saying that's the right number.  Just throwing a number out there.  So 250 seats for a neighborhood church, you might not want that limitation on Golden Gate City.  They might want 500 seats.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  But the definition of a neighborhood church will become part of the LDC? 
MS. JENKINS:  Yes. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Eventually.  
MR. BOSI:  And just let me add that in our internal discussion we were hoping that the Planning Commission would remove the neighborhood church from the Golden Gate City and let the individual conditional use bear its own results.  But we do see the value in terms of leaving it in with the rural estates and in the urban estates because as we define those ‑‑ what those conditions are, those extra conditional‑use evaluations that would be applicable to those facilities, we have the support of the Growth Management Plan to at least reference the concept that neighborhood churches are the type of facilities that want to be promoted within those two areas and leave the conditional‑use process to be the bearer of the determination for the city.  So we're in agreement with where the Planning Commission seems to yielding on this issue.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  So, Chairman, it sounds like we've got close to a consensus, possibly a consensus to remove it from the city.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I don't think anybody's objecting to it now that we've had the discussion on it, no.  I think everybody's on the same page, yeah.  Thank you.  
Yeah.  Go ahead, Stan.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Could I ‑‑ yeah, this is just a matter of curiosity.  Would the census tell me how many different religious denominations there are in Collier County? 
MR. BOSI:  No.
COMMISSIONER CHRZANOWSKI:  Okay.  Thanks.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay, Ned.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  My next comment goes to the same page, Line 37, Page 17.  It seems as though we've specced in a particular provider, Golden Gate Urgent Care, in the "such as."  Is that really what we want to do?
MS. JENKINS:  You know, that was language that was in the current master plan maybe defined at the time of 2004 when the last update was done, and we just didn't make any changes to that.  So we don't object to removing it or making any changes to that if it's helpful.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Or you could just say "such as an urgent care facility" instead of "Golden Gate."  That way it's ‑‑ because you've got Naples Community Hospital, you've got Physicians.  We've got all kinds of stuff.  
And by the way, I just caught it's 10:30.  It would be an opportunity to break.  Come back in 15 minutes and resume.  I think with the way this is going today, we might get done around noon or work through noon to finish.  We'll have to see if we get closer to that hour before we decide what to do, so.   
(A brief recess was had, and Commissioner Chrzanowski is absent for the remainder of the meeting.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay, everybody.  If you'll take your seats, we'll move forward and see where we're going to go by lunchtime.  
And we're on page ‑‑ we left off at Page 17 of the city part of Golden Gate Estates Master Plan.  Go ahead, Ned, you were ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  I go to Page 18, and it's Line 23.  In no case shall the maximum permitted density exceed 16.  This is a draftsmanship question, but I think it would be more accurate if you said in no case may the maximum permitted density.  It's just draftsmanship. 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Is draftsmanship a word? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Yes, it is.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  By the way, before I forget, I had an announcement to make.  Do you remember Scott Stone?  He left us.  Do you know who's here now?  Sally.  So if you had ‑‑ and, Sally, your last name? 
MS. ASHKAR:  Ashkar.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Sally just recently got married, too.
MS. ASHKAR:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And Sally's our new assistant county attorney, and she is taking Scott's place.  So you'll all be seeing a lot of her, and she's very talented, like Scott was.  So we've got a good replacement, and everything should move very smoothly.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  And I'll add that she has an affinity for cheese peanut butter crackers.
MS. ASHKAR:  Yeah, I was eating peanut butter when I just met him.  My mouth was full.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Karl does that to everybody.  He waits till you start eating, then he'll jump in.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  I saw my opportunity, and I seized it.
MS. ASHKAR:  Making a great first impression.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Go ahead, Ned.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  All right.
MR. WEEKS:  Mr. Chairman? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yes. 
MR. WEEKS:  David Weeks of the Comprehensive Planning staff. 
I would suggest we not change the word "shall," and the reason for that is to maintain consistency.  We have the same terminology in the Future Land Use Element and, I believe, in the Immokalee Master Plan as well; that if we want to make that change, I would suggest it would be appropriate to do it globally rather than a single ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I don't feel strongly about it.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Well, let's leave it like "shall" then.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  I go to Page 19.  And in Line 45 ‑‑ and you can all jump all over me again on this, but it says provisions for bicycle and pedestrian travel, and I feel a lot stronger in the case of bicycling that the word "safe" should be added in there.  Let me say why.  
There was a story on May 30th of '19 on Fox 4, a local story, that indicated that the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration said 16 percent of the 783 cyclists who were killed in the United States in 2017 were killed on Florida roads.  
Now, it's a problem down here, not just Collier, but all of Florida.  And I think it behooves us to be thinking about this, and what we can do is at least add language to raise a level of awareness and concern.  And so I'd put the word "safe" in front of "bicycle and pedestrian travel."
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Now ‑‑ and I spoke out about this a minute ago not knowing where this was headed, but here's my concern:  I don't think there's any way, unless you shut a lane down completely and put a barricade between any other lanes in the roadway, that it's going to be safe for bicyclists to be on a paved travel lane for vehicles.  Not because they're wrong.  I know what the law says.  They have a right to be there.  But because vehicles don't seem to like that idea too well, and people are getting hurt. 
And the bicyclists, quite a few that I've seen, don't pay a lot of attention to cars coming behind them.  Sometimes they'll go two or three abreast, they'll go up to the center of the line, which means you've got very little bit ‑‑ way to get around them.  There's too much happening when you put bicyclists on the same road system that vehicles are on.  
So if I was opposing this as a ‑‑ someone ‑‑ trying to represent somebody who was injured and the word "safe" was there, I'd simply say, how could you possibly testify, anybody can, that a road system that's got a three‑ or four‑foot wide little path along the right side on a lane that's going 55 miles an hour is safe for a bicycle?  It simple is not. 
Then I drove down 951 the other day, which everybody was going 55 and 60 ‑‑ and here's this little tiny strip of lane.  Guess what I saw?  A guy with a kid, a kid in a bicycle behind him, because the kid could be there.  This is not safe.  It can't be safe.  It couldn't be safe under any circumstances.  
To insinuate that it's going to be safe because we said, put the word "safe" in front of the bicycle and they're going to go out there and use that lane, I think, is really putting something in somebody's mind that is absolutely false.  
And if we encourage them to do that without making these roads safe, which I don't know how we can without shutting down one lane of every road in the county, I don't know how to get there, Ned, and that's what worries me about putting that word there.  I'm not against being safe.  I'm against the premise that people think it's going to be safe and it's not.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I acknowledge your point of view and ‑‑ 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Do you want me to go first?
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well ‑‑ 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Well, rather than placing adjectives to describe, you know, what kind of sidewalks or pathways you'd like to see, you're better off, since you're the land planning agency, to make some sort of recommendation to the Board.  If you feel that the pathway should be separated from the roadways, you can make a recommendation that they look into that type of thing for their plan.  
But as has already been discussed, you know, we design our roadways in accordance with state and federal standards, and safety is one of the factors that's considered.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I just ‑‑ this whole concept of complete streets, I think, is dangerous.  In many respects it could be a great thing, but it's such a safety problem in my view ‑‑ it can be for both bicyclists and pedestrians, and also it does cut down on automobile traffic, which in certain areas is going to have a negative effect on local commerce. 
But ‑‑ well, I feel like I've had a full presentation and conversation about this, and I take your point about not wanting to give plaintiffs' lawyers an opportunity to sue.  Maybe we can't fix it by a language change here, but it ‑‑ to me, this is a serious problem.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, you know, the professional bicyclists ‑‑ and I guess Stan bicycles ‑‑ they understand the challenges of being in that lane that they're in, but ordinary people thinking, okay, well, this is a safe bicycle lane, they won't think about that as much.  They'll think, well, if the government says it's safe, we'll jump right in there.  
I'm just worried it's going to ‑‑ it's going to advertise falsely a situation that we can't protect, and I don't wish anybody ever to be in those lanes on our road system.  I think ‑‑ we have a lot of drivers who are distracted, and we try to put laws in to stop texting and everything else, and people are getting hurt, and it's not right.  
We should be giving bicyclists separate lanes or separate paths to travel in, and then that would encourage exercise, it would encourage all the things that bicycling brings with us. 
To encourage them to use the road system like it's being used right now in any kind of attachment to a travel lane is dangerous as ever, and I don't think it could ever be safe.  So that's why I'm concerned about it.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I share your concerns.  To me it's a broader issue than just putting the word "safe" in there.  It's an issue of the concept of complete streets.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Maybe that's the concept we ought to be pushing under a different venue than trying to fit it into this.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I'm fine with that.  I've said my piece.  
I go all the way to ‑‑ well, now it's ‑‑ where am I?  Looks like I'm in ‑‑ I'm in ‑‑ I'm done with city.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Anybody else have any city questions?
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I've got some.
MS. JENKINS:  Okay.  I was just going to point out that there is ‑‑ in the city document there is one more reference to neighborhood church.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, they all should come out of the city document. 
MS. JENKINS:  If we don't need to point it out to you, I'm good with that direction.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No, just take it out.  
If we go to Page 21, Line 13 through 23, you're adding to the Golden Gate City activity center a lot of industrial uses.  I don't know of anybody in the city that suggested this is appropriate.  I've tried to contact a few people I know there.  They said no, they were never aware of this being proposed.  
I would strongly suggest that we don't need to do some of the things you're suggesting here.  The textile mills, the cutting and needle trades, some of those heavier technologies and laboratory research facilities and things that are beyond the scope of a C1 through, say, C4 operation or even C ‑‑ I'm not sure why these are coming up now.  We were very careful, and we had a lot of city participation when we did the first write‑up, and we had those uses there that were very specialized for the city purposely because that's what the city wanted.  
I'm trying to figure out how this got in there.  Do you ‑‑ 
MS. JENKINS:  It was in there during transmittal.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I know.
MS. JENKINS:  So we reviewed it then.  And it was in there.  We were talking with the city during the public participation about expanding economic development and job opportunities, because you have a high concentration of people within a short walking distance, and the jobs are basically in retail sales in Golden Gate City.  
You have about one mile from the access of I‑75, so there's an opportunity to provide more jobs just within the activity center alone.  Are these uses going to be allowed? 
The Land Development Code that will be modified and brought back to you will be more specific to what those uses will be in the activity center alone.  
So it's an opportunity to create something like Arthrex at a different scale in Golden Gate City to provide for more jobs in closer proximity to where people are living.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, we can go through ‑‑ go ahead, Tom.
MR. EASTMAN:  To follow up on Anita's point, the school district has recently leased property in Golden Gate City for a startup of the Center for Manufacturing Excellence.  And it's my understanding that the Center for Manufacturing Excellence will have a permanent home by joint work with the county and some of the local community colleges.  And I think it comports with exactly what Anita's describing.  It's more like an economic development and job creation initiative, and I think Mike has something to say as well.
MR. BOSI:  And this corresponds to the designation of that area as an innovation zone.  An innovation zone is supported by the qualified targeted industry that we're trying to get components to 21st Century type of manufacturing that we ‑‑ that we know creates higher paying jobs and provides for economic opportunities to a ‑‑ to an area that has a higher population of workforce within the surrounding area.  
So this has been ‑‑ and it was part of the public meetings that we've had these discussions, had the Jace Kentners at the Golden Gate Community Center.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Jace doesn't ‑‑ what would he know about Golden Gate City as far as living out there?  Did he live in Golden Gate City? 
MR. BOSI:  No, but describing the type of uses that are being promoted by the Board of County Commissioners ‑‑ the Board has already designated this area as an innovation zone.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But they're not promoted by the people that live there.  I talked to some of them.  They didn't even know about this.  For example, 2211, broad woven fabric mills, cotton.  There's over 100 ‑‑ probably 100 uses of types of manufacturing different types of fabrics. 
And these are mills, establishments primarily engaged in weaving fabrics more than 12 inches in width wholly and chiefly by weight of cotton, establishment primarily engaged in weaving and tufting carpet, and it goes on for two pages.  
2221, broad woven fabric mills, manmade fiber silk.  Then 2223 ‑‑ 31, broad woven fabric mills, wool.  I mean, dying and finishing.  What kind of stuff is that for the downtown of a city?  And the area that this is in is right next to the Catholic church.  I mean, how does that make any sense? 
MR. BOSI:  And I would remind the Planning Commission that this is an overlay that is in the Growth Management Plan, and to incorporate any one of these uses, you would have to go through the zoning process and the compatibility, and the analysis and the appropriateness of any one of these uses would be part of that zoning request. 
So what we're doing is providing increased opportunities for job creation.  And I can understand and I most certainly appreciate the concerns of a wrong fit within an area that wouldn't support a textile mill, but it is a right fit for a small manufacturing facility that employ, say, 3D printing or 21st Century type of technologies, so ‑‑
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I'm not even there yet, Mike.  I'm not even to the 3D printing, and I'm reading things that are just obnoxious for a downtown commercial area.  It just doesn't make any ‑‑ finishers of broad woven fabrics, finishers of textiles, yarn and thread mills, yard texturizing.  It goes ‑‑ mixed ‑‑ miscellaneous textile goods.  All kind ‑‑ burlap, carbonized rugs whatever they are, crash linen.  
What kind of stuff is that to be popping up in the middle of Golden Gate City in their one activity center? 
MR. BOSI:  I think those are uses that, unfortunately, are part of that SIC code range, and ‑‑ but in terms of a market reality, in terms of how those uses could be ‑‑ would be arrived upon.  They would have to go through a rezoning process, but also on the other side of that, the converse side of that is, is there a marketplace for a textile mill within Golden Gate City?  I don't believe so.  I don't think the Planning Commission would think that that would be appropriate from a rezoning process.  I don't think the community would think that that would be something they would support during a rezoning process as well.  
So I understand the concerns on some of these other uses.  It's just this was to fulfill the direction of the designation of the innovation zone that the Board has designed to create economic opportunities for the area and, obviously, the Planning Commission can most certainty have a different perspective.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  It doesn't matter to me what the Planning Commission does.  I can tell you what I'm going to do.  I can't support this kind of activity in downtown Golden Gate City.  I think it will make it ‑‑ it will actually depress the city, not help it.  I think it's wrong, and I'm just not going to go along with it.  If it means I vote no on the entire urban section of this, I will do so.  
This is not thought out.  If you guys have a specific milder mindset in mind, then that needs to be in here, not this broad reference, because this broad reference is going to have somebody arguing in front of us that, see, it's in the GMP.  We're allowed to do it.  And they'll twist the language into something you never intended because we didn't make our intent clear.
MR. BOSI:  And I ‑‑ and I guess the ‑‑ and most certainly whatever the Planning Commission ‑‑ we will take to the yield (sic).  But this was part of the transmittal documents, and these type of discussions ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  What did I say in transmittal?  I said, well, I'm assuming the city people and the stakeholders have vetted all this, and they must be on board.
MR. BOSI:  It was part of the public.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, that's not what I've been hearing now, so ‑‑ and between transmittal and now, there's been a little more time to look into this than there was in transmittal, Mike, so ‑‑ I understand your position.  You're doing what you have to do, and I'll do what I've got to do going forward.
Anybody else?  Go ahead, Tom.
MR. EASTMAN:  I agree with you, Mr. Strain, regarding a textile mill, and I think the language could be narrowed.  
Are you opposed to a modification that would still allow some of the more advanced or light industrial, more technologically sophisticated uses for that job‑creation component that's trying to be gained here?
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No.  What I'm against, Tom, is the broad argument someone could make with the way this is written and the manner that we've always ‑‑ we've constantly approached.  Everything's being squeezed into this county right now, and people are looking for loopholes to argue things we never ever intended, and this is the kind of stuff that produces that, and that's what I'm against.  
I don't disagree with you.  I think the intent that I'm hearing from Mike and Anita could probably be tailored right to fit, but I'm not going to suggest that it's ‑‑ okay, we'll just leave this broad language here.  It's not what we really mean.  We really mean something different.  We'll define it in the LDC.  We've been trying for that, and it's not working anymore.  There's too many ways to get around that.  We're learning that as we go forward, and I'm not willing to go there again if I can help it, so...
MR. EASTMAN:  And I certainly agree with you regarding the broad scope.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Thank you.  I don't know how you want to handle this.  I guess ‑‑ I don't know how ‑‑ if you want to come back with better language, but it means we wouldn't get through with this today.  I thought we were going to get through with it today.  I thought this ‑‑ if this wasn't ‑‑ if this was something this wasn't necessary, since I don't know how it came about ‑‑ if it's just our Economic Development Department saying they want to do this for Golden Gate City, that doesn't carry any weight with me whatsoever. 
I'm looking at the residents in the community that need to be adhered to.  That's the people that I'm concerned about.  And I haven't heard from them specifically that this is what they want.  I have heard from the couple that I've talked to that they didn't know about this.  But then again, nobody's here today either, so that's a little disappointing. 
But I personally think this is wrong.  I won't go along with it.  But it doesn't mean ‑‑ you've got five people up here, so I'll just be one of the voices that call attention to it, and we can go forward.  We'll see how it plays out today if you'd like.
MS. JENKINS:  Sure.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Or if you want to come back and provide a better description of what you're intending here so that we can lock it down tighter, I would greatly be in favor of that.  But I'll let you decide that before we finish today.
MS. JENKINS:  Okay.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Mark, are you proposing to strike that whole section and no reference to SIC codes and industries or simply to remove some of the ranges that are in there? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No, I think they ought to be solicited ‑‑ we ought to go through them like Ned goes through some of the language pieces.  We ought to go through these with a fine‑toothed comb and say ‑‑ because this is the future of that area.  This will be the future of how that city develops out.  And I know how ‑‑ as things get tighter and land gets more valuable, people are going to try to find ways to argue all around things. 
So I think this needs to be written more tightly because of the magnitude that this could open doors for versus other ones that are very specific.  This is not specific at all.  
I don't have a problem with call centers, but at the same time call centers ‑‑ we do have other sections of the GMP that put limitations on size.  Maybe we ought to be looking at that.  If the intent is we're looking at small facilities, you know, a couple operators to answer phones, I have no problem with that, if that's classified as a call center, but then if you go to call centers and it's got something broader than that that we never intended, I don't want to open that door.  
I'm worried that our GMP's done that too much in the past that we didn't expect that we're seeing now.  We're getting changes that I wouldn't have anticipated in all the years I've been here, but we're getting them, and I think we need to tighten it down.  I don't want this community to change any more than we intended. 
MS. JENKINS:  And, Mr. Chair, that will be tightened down in the Land Development Code.  There's an overlay.  So if there's some size restrictions in advanced manufacturing only ‑‑ the challenge that we're having is we're using a very outdated SIC code for manufacturing techniques that aren't necessarily defined in that 1980s document that ‑‑ there's new definitions of that that we're not allowed to use today because we're using SIC.  So that's part of our challenge as well is trying to explain these new manufacturing techniques in an old ‑‑ you know, in old standards that we're using.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well ‑‑ 
MS. JENKINS:  But it will be tightened down in the Land Development Code in the overlay.
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Can we say only these?  Only 3D printing? 
MR. BOSI:  Well ‑‑ and one suggestion would be to eliminate the SIC codes and just use the shells of the advanced manufacturing and automated peril and eliminate the SIC codes that reference 19th Century‑type facilities.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That would help, but I think we ought to limit it in a size that's conducive to the area that it's going in.  I mean, you mentioned Arthrex.  If Arthrex ever, ever thought they were going to put a 600,000‑square‑foot finishing facility in downtown Golden Gate City like they have out in Ave Maria, I think that's not a good fit, and I don't think that's what you intend.  
But I think if they were to put a small‑scope operation like they're doing with their highly‑rated ‑‑ the equipment they build, that's nice.  That would be ‑‑ I just want to make sure we're on the same page with the intent that would come out of this GMP, and it couldn't be twisted.  
David's been here a long time.  He knows ‑‑ how many times have I brought up trying to change the whole code over to the next facility ‑‑ next system?  Every single time it's not gone forward.  Every single time we've tried, and every single time there's been some dollars involved, consultants involved, but never ever, ever happened.  It's brought up way too many times. 
Joe Schmitt was director when it was brought up one time.  He remembers it.  We could never get traction.  Before Jace was in charge of economic development, the other fellow that was here, he brought it up.  We tried it again then.  We actually got pricing on what it would take.  Couldn't get it done. 
It is so complicated because all of our PUDs have all those SICs in them.  We have 450‑plus PUDs.  The commercial components all are relevant to the SICs.  Now you go back.  You're changing property rights in some person's minds because they have this broad SIC number, and we're trying to say, well, that's not what we intended.  We actually intended what the NAICS says, and it's a much finer‑tuned number.  Well, that's not what I intended.  Now we run into trouble.  That's been the trouble.  That's been the hurdle we can't get past.  
So I agree with you, it's an antiquated code, and because of that we've got to be more careful, and that's why I'm concerned about this.
MS. JENKINS:  So I think we originally added the SIC codes at your request, Mr. Strain, so ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, I'm glad you did, because now I know what you mean, and I don't like it.
MS. JENKINS:  So maybe if we remove that and you can see the details in the Land Development Code as specifically, you know, out of that full list what might be allowed in the square footage to that, maybe that would help move this along.
MR. BOSI:  And I would say that ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.
MR. BOSI:  ‑‑ G provides a good description as to what the intended purpose of these uses are for.  So as you would be going through a rezoning process, not only the groupings that we would suggest without the SIC codes ‑‑ but G says, other uses as determined by the Board of County Commissioners consistent with the intent of supporting economic development in Golden Gate City.  
And I think the intent of ‑‑ the purpose of these uses and what they're trying to provide for within this ‑‑ within this urbanized area, as you point out, doesn't support a yarn manufacturing facility but could support a 3D printing facility that employs five people that has no internal influences upon the neighbors.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And, Mike, I don't disagree with you in part of that.  The other part is you just pointed out another problem I have.  And maybe I'm gotten too cynical being here too long.  But with the intent of supporting economic development in Golden Gate City, do you know that anybody could make that an argument in their favor?  And you would hear it from all those applicants wanting to come in saying, we're going to bring two more jobs to Golden Gate Estates.  Even though we're a heavily pollutant battery acid development business, we still are going to bring two jobs; therefore, we are supporting economic development.  
I just want it ‑‑ I would like to see this tighter.  And with these SIC codes ‑‑ and I see where you're heading ‑‑ now I ‑‑ there is a very big concern, so...
I don't know ‑‑ I would suggest if we remove the SIC codes, knowing now where these are on record as to what you were thinking, so the intent of those codes is there, I think that would also require some additional fine tuning of what you're referring to when you say advanced manufacturing and automated apparel.  I mean, you don't mean sweat shops, obviously, but you mean something of a nature that we have in other parts of the GMP limited in size.  
So just provide that flexibility that we could address it that way so we know that we're not going to have something outrageous there.  That's my concern, so unless anybody ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Well, I definitely ‑‑ it sounds like the SIC codes paint us into a bit of a corner down the road, and so I certainly concur with removing the SIC codes.  
But, Mark, that is not enough for now.  In order to finalize this, you'd like additional definition put on the text as well? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, the SIC codes provided a window of understanding what the intent was, what was ‑‑ where we're headed.  Now that we know that, I think that's exactly the concern.  And if we're going to leave without the SIC code ‑‑ which is probably a better idea now that we know what these mean ‑‑ we further refine advanced manufacturing to some capacity, size, something to get us to a limitation.
MR. BOSI:  Could we add a descriptive component within ‑‑ within this section to say uses appropriate and rightly sized to be conducive to the mixed‑use environment in which they will sit?  Because that's where this is ‑‑ this is only allocated to the activity center.  That's the mixed use ‑‑ the mixed‑use activity center.  
So if we reference within the GMP appropriately ‑‑ the use appropriate in the context of a mixed‑use activity center ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Compatible.
MR. BOSI:  ‑‑ its size ‑‑ and compatible with the mixed‑use activity center recognizing that means commercial ‑‑ that means commercial, that means residential, and that means some of these job‑creation opportunities.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah, that would get us there, Mike.
MR. BOSI:  So that gives us at the GMP level the guidance that ‑‑ the specificity and the scrutiny that's going to be provided at the rezoning has to be appropriate toward those other mix of uses in which it's going to share the same space.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Compatibility to ‑‑ 
(Simultaneous crosstalk.) 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  You know, this is existing language that's in the Growth Management Plan.  I prefer that you address it as Anita is suggesting through the LDC amendment or through a rezoning because I don't want to take away people's rights.  Now you're going to force them to be in a mixed use.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That's exactly the argument I'm worried about.  I'm glad you said that.  That's the piece that I'm concerned about.  
So if we ‑‑ if ‑‑ how do we limit it so we don't open it up to all these SIC codes to the extent they could be, Heidi? 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  I think just going back to the original text and not addressing it through the Growth Management Plan.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So we would drop all of the underlined and crossed‑through language?
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Yes, correct, through ‑‑ Lines 13 through 25.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Is that the original text prior to the transmittal?
MS. JENKINS:  So the original text ‑‑ 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Yeah.  You'll just take out the strikethrough and underlines.
MS. JENKINS:  Yeah.  The strikethrough/underline was what the CCPC recommended through transmittal.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Right.  But prior to transmittal, what did we have?  
MS. JENKINS:  You had the language without the strikethrough/underline.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  But, I mean, the transmittal didn't ‑‑ David?
MR. WEEKS:  Lines 13 through 25 are not in the existing Golden Gate Master Plan.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That's what I was trying to understand.  Okay.  That's the piece I was trying to get.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  So we could strike ‑‑
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That's where I'm trying to ‑‑ yeah. 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Oh, I'm sorry.  You're working off the strikethrough and ‑‑ okay.  Gotcha.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I think there's two levels of strikethrough and underline.  One disappeared after the transmittal; is that a fair statement? 
MS. JENKINS:  That's correct.   
COMMISSIONER FRY:  So if we strike those lines, we leave it up to the LDC to ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No.  If we strike those lines, we still are adding all this as untested, basically.
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Okay.  So this is all new text.  So you could tinker with it if you want to.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That's what I ‑‑ 
MR. BOSI:  So what we would do is we would ‑‑
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Let's go back to where Mike was suggesting.
MR. BOSI:  ‑‑ remove the SIC reference and then put a qualifier that these uses that are being promoted would have to recognize the mixed‑use environment in which they are intended to reside and the compatibility analysis would be required based upon the type of uses and based upon the mix of uses that are anticipated within the mixed‑use center.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah, that would get us ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I would add the concept of proportionality as well as compatibility.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, that's fine.  Good.
MR. BOSI:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Could ‑‑ now, we're probably going to need all ‑‑ we're going to have to have another review of this but not to this extent, just a redline review for the changes we're asking for today to make sure you caught them all.  That would be a shorter attempt, but at least let's go through all this stuff today. 
So I would suggest we go with what we just talked about.  And I think, Mike, if you could make ‑‑ help with that, that would be real beneficial.
MR. BOSI:  Sure.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Thank you.  Thank you.  
That gets us past that page.  I had a ‑‑ oh, just a ‑‑ Page 22, Line 32.  How much ‑‑ is Line 32 ‑‑ where did this ‑‑ because it says, within one year of the effective date of this subdistrict, which the subdistrict was, I assume, then, one of the ones that was created back ‑‑ 
MS. JENKINS:  Yeah.  There was no changes to the subdistrict.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I know, but one year of that subdistrict is two decades ago, isn't it?
MS. JENKINS:  (Nods head.)  Right.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  You kind of know where I'm going.  What do we do with this?  I mean, why put something in here we're not going to meet when we haven't met it for 20 years?  Why don't we just start with the word "the" and drop that ‑‑ stop putting that "one year" in there because it didn't make any sense.  Anybody have a problem with that or ‑‑ David?
MR. WEEKS:  I don't have a problem with it.  What I mean by that is the State no longer has the level of review that they did prior to 2011 and, historically, we had to have objectives that were measurable, and to leave this wide open to simply say we'll do it.  By "lack of specificity" means whenever.  
Historically the State would have said, you can't do that.  You've got to specify.  But because they no longer have that authority, it becomes a local decision.  That's what I meant by no problem.  If we remove that language as you're suggesting, I don't think we're going to have any compliance issues with the State.   
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  I'd just as soon remove it, because it's just making it look like we're not doing what we're supposed to do, even though we aren't.  But still, why make it that apparent? 
MR. WEEKS:  And just for the record, it's not that staff has totally ignored this requirement.  There was an effort back in the, I believe, early 2000s to create such a zoning overlay, and it got bogged down, at least in part, because of some plans for power lines to be relocated, and there was a decision, well, if the road's going to change, if the power lines get moved, you know, the property's going to be affected, let's don't try to ‑‑ let's wait till that gets resolved because we start trying to plan this overlay, and it's just been dormant since.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I'd just as soon drop it then if we don't ‑‑ and that's the last issue I have on the urban ‑‑ the city part of it.  Anybody else have anything on the city?
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Let's move into the urban, if that's okay, Anita.
MS. JENKINS:  Yes. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And, Ned, do you want to start out the urban or, Karl, either one of you got ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Sure.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Karl lives there, so I figured maybe he'd want to start it out, if he's got specifics.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Okay.  I'm looking at Page 1,888 in our packet.  Let me find that and tell you what page number that is.  Page 16.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Does anybody have anything before 16?  As we go through, we'll keep up with Karl, but if we've got something before where he starts ‑‑ Karl, I've got one.  
It's on Page 11, Lines 33 through 35.  It's interesting that in the urban estates, this ‑‑ those lines were crossed out but in the rural estates they were left in.  Do we know why? 
MS. JENKINS:  Sure.  It's redundant.  A conditional use requires minimum votes in our LDC and in the administrative code, so this is redundant to what's already required for the approval.  Knowing that the rural estates seems to be a little bit more adamant about repeating things like that, we left it in there, as we heard from the civic associations out there.  But it is redundant. 
So if we want to remove redundancies in these Comp Plans, this is one area to do that.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, the part that I kind of like about leaving it in, it's a little bit harder to take it out if they do a broad brush to take things out but it's still in the GMP for some specific sections.  It stays there until the people get wind of it, and then they can express themselves again.  I'd rather leave this in.  It's better protection for the neighborhood.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Agreed.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  And, Karl, you're on Page 16, so let me make sure I get there.  
On the next page, Anita, Line 8, Policy 117, it's one of the few times that GGAMP is still there.  You should ‑‑ I think you mean the urban area of the Golden Gate area, however you reword things.  That ‑‑ in the ordinance, the adoption ordinance you fixed it.
MS. JENKINS:  Okay.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I'm just telling you it's not fixed in this version.
MS. JENKINS:  Okay.  Thank you.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So Page ‑‑ I've got a couple more, Karl, then I'll let you have it.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Sure.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Page 15 ‑‑ no, that's already taken care of.  So now we're right where Karl is.  Okay.  We're on Page 16 then.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Page 16, Policy 3.1.3, Lines 45 through 48 on that page.  
I mean, it's a wonderful concept, and I wondered if there has been progress made on this already in terms of interconnected trails and paths.  This is about greenway ‑‑ interconnected greenway corridors in the urban estates.  People to move about the Estates by means other than motorized vehicle.  Is that something that is in the works?  I'm curious how that would be achieved.  
A lot of the urban estates are cut off from each other, and I'm not sure how I see an interconnected corridor of greenways as being possible.
MS. JENKINS:  That was something that was brought up during your public workshops specifically with urban estates as well.  They were very interested in trying to figure out a trail system throughout the urban estates, so that's why we made sure it was left in here.  
Now, the MPO did just update their bicycle and pedestrian master plan, which may have more of a greenway network.  Transportation planning for Collier County may be looking at those opportunities as well.  
So is it in the works yet?  I don't know of a specific plan, but we know that if it's in here, in the Comp Plan, then that gives us the ability to move it forward to transportation planning as well.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  I happen to ‑‑ I mean, I agree strongly with Chairman Strain's observation that the bike lanes along a fast‑moving motorway is not exactly safe.  I would personally never let my child ride their bike down a road like that.  So it would be great to have a separate network of biking and hiking/walking/running trails.  Something I think we're missing in Collier County.  I'd just like to see this have some teeth rather than just be something ‑‑ a couple words in a document.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I'd like ‑‑ that would ‑‑ yeah.  If we could make that happen, this county would be golden.  But go ahead, David.
MR. WEEKS:  Just one additional comment that sometimes when we have language such as this in our Comprehensive Plan, it can be advantageous when the county seeks grants because then we have one additional piece of information.  Look, our Comprehensive Plan recognizes this.  It gives it a little more weight.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Great.  Thank you.
I have minimal comments.  The other comments I noticed is that there ‑‑ I'm going to go Page 1,925, which ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Page ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I've got one before that.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Go ahead, Ned, if you'd like to.  If you want to do it in order.  That's my next one.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I think that would be easier. 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Absolutely.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Mine's on Page 37, which is 1,990, and it has to do with this cellular thing again.  And I just don't see how we can tie our hands, particularly since the availability of cellular service and quality cellular service has become a public‑safety issue.  We don't know where the dead spaces are going to be, and I don't think we should be limiting ourselves at this point where we put up or allow the cellular towers to be put up.  And that specifically goes to Line 12 and following on that page.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  What page are you on again? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  That is Page 37.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No, we haven't got past Page 19 yet.  Wait a minute.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  We jumped far ahead.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  We jumped pretty far ahead.  Karl ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  I was going to jump even farther ahead.  But I do have a comment on Page 36.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Oh, okay.  I thought you said you jumped to Page 19.
MS. JENKINS:  I did, too.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Page 37. 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  My page numbers are based on this, you know, longer document, so I have to get to that page and then relate to your page number.  So, yeah, I'm well down the road.  But I do have a comment on Page 36, so whenever we get to there, I will jump in again.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I'll tell you what.  We better go back to ‑‑ you go finish yours, then Ned, and then me.  Because I can't ‑‑ we can't follow where the pages are.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  If you don't mind jumping around at least with the page reference, we should all be on the same page.  So looking at your Page 36, it's transitional conditional uses.  
Looking for clarification here because there's a lot of language here.  So let's say that you have a main roadway and you have a church that is approved along that main roadway between that and a residential area or Estates‑zoned area.  I think the concern that I find common in my neighborhood and I'm sure in others is that leapfrogging of nonresidential uses deeper and deeper into a neighborhood.  
For instance, here is a church, and then now we have this commercial enterprise that is somehow using its abutment to that church, which is nonresidential, as a way to encroach further into the neighborhood.  Is that limited ‑‑ in what ways is that limited in this plan is my question.
MS. JENKINS:  David, you've been dealing with that, haven't you? 
MR. WEEKS:  If I understood you correctly, you made reference to a new conditional use coming in piggybacking on an existing church.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  For a rezone to commercial but based on the fact that traffic is getting to it, you know, adjacent to a nonresidential use such as a church or another conditional use.
MR. WEEKS:  Okay.  For this transitional CU provision ‑‑ for a subject property to qualify for this transitional conditional use, it has to be adjacent to a nonresidential use.  But the nonresidential use that it is adjacent to cannot be one of the conditional uses allowed in the Estates zoning district.  
So what that means is let's say an ALF wants to come in for a transitional CU.  That ALF cannot ‑‑ a parcel, proposed, cannot be next door to another ALF or a church or a daycare center or any of those Estates zoning district CUs, otherwise you would have a continuous piggyback right down the street.  So it has to be next to a commercial use, for example, or certain types of essential services.  
Right in your neighborhood on Immokalee Road where the fire station is at, as you know, there's a church on each side, and that's how they got there.  They were next to that fire station.  That's the end.  The next parcel over on each side of those churches cannot come in for a transitional conditional use because the two churches themselves are Estates conditional uses.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Okay.  So in that way you limit the piggybacking of similar transitional conditional uses, and it limits the leapfrogging into a neighborhood? 
MR. WEEKS:  Correct.  I mean, so it's site specific.  In your particular neighborhood, I think you're referring to one street south of Immokalee Road where there's ‑‑  
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Possibly.
MR. WEEKS:  ‑‑ really old ‑‑ there is within your neighborhood, I'll just say, an old commercial building.  And by virtue of it being there, the two parcels adjacent to it are eligible for this transitional conditional use.  To my knowledge, there are no other commercial or essential services within that two sections of Estates between Immokalee Road and Vanderbilt Beach Road that would allow for further encroachment.  It would take a Comprehensive Plan amendment for any other conditional use to be going within those two sections of land.  
So that's what I mean by site specific.  There happens to be one other commercial property in your neighborhood, so that's how ‑‑ if you want to call it encroachment, there would be some further encroachment allowed of transitional conditional use.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  My concern is on a greater level; it really is for all the residential neighborhoods where there seems to be ‑‑ you know, something gets approved, and then somebody applies for a rezone or a master plan amendment for something adjacent to that.  And I think there is fear out there that the system allows that encroachment and the piggybacking to continue deep into the neighborhoods.
MR. WEEKS:  Well, what's built in here is that if a new commercial property occurs, that is a Comprehensive Plan amendment and then the rezone to establish a new piece of commercial zoning within the Estates, then those two adjacent properties would be eligible for the transitional CU.  So if I understood you correctly, you're correct that there's a linkage.  So a new commercial or a new essential service such as a fire station goes in, voila, we've opened the door for conditional uses next door to it.  That's the way the text works.
MR. BOSI:  But I would add that when this Planning Commission has had those requests ‑‑ and, specifically, I believe it was Southbrooke ‑‑ they added an imposition that this ‑‑ that new commercial use would not allow for the adjoining parcels to qualify for transitional conditional uses. 
So this Planning Commission has made provisions, when they've had that particular use and they thought it was appropriate, they put limitations that leapfrog could not be added to it.  So that's been something this Planning Commission has been aware of.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But the PUDs that ‑‑ or the conditional uses are amendments or changes to the Land Development Code.  Can they, then, override the ability for the GMP to say transitional conditional uses are allowed? 
MR. WEEKS:  No, because the GMP governs.  So if the GMP says you cannot qualify for a conditional use here, then that's it.  It's dictating to the LDC your process doesn't apply here.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No.  But I think what Mike's saying is that the transitional conditional uses that would normally be allowed against new commercial ‑‑ like Southbrooke, you could stipulate in the PUD for Southbrooke that they weren't ‑‑ oh, that was done in the GMP.
MR. WEEKS:  Correct.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Good.  That's what I was double checking.
MR. BOSI:  That provision was provided in the LDC.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So we're not overriding ‑‑ the LDC can't override the GMP, and the GMP would then be consistent because that's what the ‑‑ 
(Simultaneous crosstalk.) 
MR. BOSI:  The GMP informed itself that these ‑‑ that that transitional conditional‑use aspect could not be applied to those parcels of land.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  We didn't put it in the PUD.  We put it in the GMP.
MR. BOSI:  Put it in the GMP.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Gotcha.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  So to summarize, there is really no restriction on the ability to rezone properties within a neighborhood commercial and, in fact, by doing so, opening up the future prospect of additional transitional conditional uses deeper into the neighborhood.
MR. WEEKS:  Okay.  Two things.  One, for most locations within Golden Gate Estates, it would require a Comprehensive Plan amendment to get to that commercial rezone.  If you're outside of a neighborhood center, that's just about the only location for commercial.  And as Mike was just explaining, when that Comprehensive Plan amendment occurs to create the ability for commercial zoning, the county does have the ability to say this transitional CU process will not apply for these adjacent properties.  
The result being, if the plan amendment is approved, okay, you've got new commercial zoning, but you cannot have conditional uses next door unless you go through your own plan amendment.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Thank you.  Thank you for clarifying that.  
The only other thing I have is that there's reference to the Southbrooke PUD.  Let me get you a page number for that; 1,925, which is 53.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I can't figure your numbers ‑‑ you've got a completely different number system.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  The number above the footer, the footnote, is 53 on that particular page. 
So it's talking about if I ‑‑ Lines 12 through 14, it's talking about minimum 30 feet in width of the vegetated buffer.  Now, that does not match what I believe was submitted.  And my question is this:  I have documents from that time when the developer committed to and we supported them or we did not oppose them in return for a 45‑foot vegetative buffer, plus 30 feet of water management area planted with trees and a wall and a lot of other requirements.  
So this is a ‑‑ I think an inaccurate reinstatement of just a small part of the conditions on that PUD.  And I'm curious why ‑‑ how is it decided that this little bit of detail would be included but not referencing the greater detail that's in the ‑‑ in what was approved.  And it doesn't match what I believe was negotiated.
MR. WEEKS:  I don't recall.  I'm going to assume, you know, what you're saying is accurate, and maybe the PUD has that greater level of detail.
The amount of detail we put in the Comprehensive Plan varies widely.  What we are required by statute for a plan designation is to identify the allowable uses and the intensity or density.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Okay.
MR. WEEKS:  That's it.  We don't have to put in any type of development standards.  And you'll see subdistricts that contain some development standards such as this, some that will contain far more, and then some will contain none.  But about your specific question is, should that ‑‑ should Lines 12 through 14 be replaced with a more general statement that setbacks and vegetative buffers are defined within the approved PUD documents or the approved master plan amendment documents, rather than have a very limited and possibly inaccurate restatement?
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  These are minimums.  The fact that we ‑‑ we negotiated a better system in the PUD may be why there's a discrepancy.  These are just minimums, so this was a bottom‑line protection.  In the PUD we actually got more concessions out of the developer for the neighborhood.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  So this in no way overalls ‑‑ the PUD will overrule ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, there's nothing to overrule here.  It says the minimum.  They're at 45, so it's not overruling it.  It's consistent with it.
(Simultaneous crosstalk.) 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  All right.  My concern was that this somehow would override and reduce their requirement to 30 feet, but it's ‑‑ the PUD documents are the ruling document in this case. 
MR. WEEKS:  Because it's more restrictive, which is allowed.  
And further, as a general comment, I would ‑‑ because this was a subdistrict established by a private sector amendment, historically our protocol has been to leave it alone, because the applicant paid and went through the process to get this language adopted in the plan, so we usually take the approach let's leave it alone.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Okay.  So you reference a few other subdistricts in this, and you have general comments as well similar to this.  I don't know whether they're accurate or not, but what you're saying is in general it's the PUD that's more restrictive, and so this does not overrule anything that might have been negotiated by those neighborhoods with those developers.
MR. WEEKS:  Correct.  Another example will be with uses themselves where ‑‑ go back to the mixed‑use activity center we were discussing earlier.  The activity center allows C1 through C5 zoning.  It allows it, and individual rezoning within the activity center could be more restrictive as far as the uses allowed.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Great.  Thank you.  That's all I have.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  And I don't have anything else in that.  Ned? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I want to go back to cellular because I don't think we finished that, did we?
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No.  I think we ‑‑ yeah, let's go back to it, just to be sure.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  That was on Page 37, and I ‑‑ my concern is in Line 12 through 14.  I just don't think the county should be limiting itself, given the public‑safety importance of cell phones nowadays, to where we could put up towers and where we can allow towers to be put up.
MR. BOSI:  There was a lot of discussion about expanding where telecommunication towers can go within the urban estates, the rural estates, and even prior that there was recognition that putting a tower deep into a neighborhood was something that was not supported by the general public, and they only wanted those opportunities to be on your collector and arterial roads. 
Of course, that ‑‑ if it's the purview of the Planning Commission to go out and engage the community and see if that's ‑‑ that's changed, but ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Well, I think we should reserve the ability to address it because it's a public‑safety issue.  It's not just an aesthetics issue.  It's a public‑safety issue.
MR. BOSI:  All ‑‑ telecommunications towers are essential services so, yes, it is part of public safety.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  So why wouldn't we want to just keep our options open rather than have a limitation in here, which is what this Section 5 is? 
MS. JENKINS:  And those limitations were a recommendation by the Planning Commission, and that's how that language changed to make them adjacent to collectors ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That was in the Estates group.  Yeah, they were vocal on that, too, if I'm not mistaken.  So I don't have a problem with the language that's written.  I understand Ned's concern, but then if someone wanted to put a tower out there, they could change the location, but they could bring forward a small‑scale plan amendment to be able to do that so they could have a conditional use, whatever use they wanted there, to be able to get that to happen, couldn't they? 
MS. JENKINS:  They could.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.  It's still not locked out.  It just makes it another step that the community would have to be involved in.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  Let's see.  That's all I have in urban.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Me, too.  Anybody else got anything in urban?  
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Let's move on to rural.  It starts on page ‑‑ who knows what page.  I'm not even going to get into that. 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Page 1.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Page 1, yeah.  Page 1 of the last 40 pages of the document, I think.   
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I think those of us who are following the other pagination, we're on 1,928.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  You know, on Page Roman Numeral VI, the Immokalee Road/Randall Boulevard planning study area, that's been added as a map to the rural area.
Just out of curiosity, why?  Doesn't that go out beyond the Estates and go south?  I forgot.  How did this get added?  Can you ‑‑ 
MS. JENKINS:  It was at your request.  We referenced ‑‑
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  I just want to make sure.
MS. JENKINS:  And it was requested let's just put the map in so everyone understands ‑‑ 
(Simultaneous crosstalk.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Because you referred to it in the text.
MS. JENKINS:  Yeah.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.  Okay.  That's fine.  I just wanted to make sure.  I don't remember all these things.  I'm glad somebody else does.
I don't really have any questions.  Does anybody else?
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  In rural? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.  How do you like that? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I go to Page ‑‑ Karl, jump in, but I go to 1,959 on yours and my pagination.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  What's mine?  What page number's on the bottom; do you know? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I'm getting there.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Oh.  Well, while they're looking, Anita, I took the language that you've given us that's redlined and compared it to the previous break apart of the system ‑‑ of the two sections, rural and urban.  Now ‑‑ and I highlighted the pieces that were different, but the differences I saw were language in paragraphs that talked about map sections that applied only to the urban area and language in paragraphs that applied, map sections, only to the rural area.  
And, for example, the overlays, you have the Golden Gate Estates shopping.  That's only in the rural area now.  And you have Southbrooke, and that's only in the urban area now.  That I expected.  That separates the two pieces out so they're ‑‑ each piece has got all of its pieces together.  But there's no unique language change to each one of them other than calling them the urban and the rural.
I thought ‑‑ I thought there was going to be a purpose to separating them out.
MS. JENKINS:  The maps? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  No.  The text.
MS. JENKINS:  The text? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  The text is the same text, just moved in one or all in the other or if it's common to both, in both, but nothing's changed.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I thought that's what we asked for.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, I'm trying to understand the benefit of it, because I always worry that somewhere down the road someone's going to say, well, the urban area of the Estates is urbanized, it's more modern, but the rural area, those folks are just the rural people.  Let's just put some stuff out there we wouldn't put in the urban area because now we have two areas where we can put stuff we don't want in the other. 
And I may be cynical again, but I'm worried that the urban ‑‑ the rural estates is going to start getting singled out for operations, uses, and things that will be avoided in the urban estates and the old conquer‑and‑divide principle comes into play. 
Now, we've got the urban estates folks.  Well, that's going to the rural estates; we haven't got to worry about it.  And the rural estates people stand on their own again.  I don't know the basis why this is being done.  I think the city moving out of this is great.  I think it's a really good move, and it should have been done a long time ago. 
In the urban area, being not really thought out how as far as definition, everything east of ‑‑ and you'll see this when we get into the ordinances.  Everything east of 951 is rural and everything west is urban, but yet if you go to 951, especially north of Golden Gate Boulevard, east and west is identical.  The people on the west can't get anywhere unless they go out to 951, and the people on the east can't get anywhere unless they go to 951.  Yet the benefit of being the urban estates, according to the preamble in the ordinance, is that they have easier and quicker access to the coastal area.  How does that make anything any different?  I mean, there's no ‑‑ I just ‑‑ I keep looking for the reason for all this, and I can't find it.
MS. JENKINS:  The reason was it was Board directed.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  That's right.  That was the trifurcation discussion.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But why?  Does anybody get feeding ‑‑ I mean, actually, I didn't ‑‑ I don't ‑‑ unless I'm in a really good mood, I don't watch the Board meetings because they put me in a bad mood, and I don't want to start out in a bad mood and get worse. 
Does anybody know why other than we just think it ought to be called this way?  Because, honestly, when we drew the lines, to think that east and west of 951 is any different when they all use 951 and they're separated by that canal from the rest of the urban area, it doesn't make them cohesive.  You can't get across those canals. 
So you've got to drive all the way up to 951, all the way to Immokalee Road, and all the way back down to Oakes or somewhere like that.  Why are we doing this other than conquer and divide the groups that are out there?  I mean, I just can't figure it out.  
I thought it would show up in this language.  That's why I wanted the redline.  I couldn't figure out what you changed last time to make all this worthwhile.  Now I realize you changed nothing.  You just moved the pieces around.
MS. JENKINS:  Right.  Yeah.  And the trifurcation was to divide out the difference subareas and with the thought that it would provide the civic associations in the different areas the ability to help push their own future forward, right?  
So if the rural estates has a different vision, different future for themselves, then they can more easily define that.  And I think you kind of see that now that it's trifurcated that the urban estates doesn't have as much vision as the rural estates has had historically, so it's an opportunity for them really to define their future.
So past the Board direction and that explanation, we were directed not to make any additional language changes beyond the minimum to help guide us are we in urban and rural.
So we were not directed by the Board to change any other language, so we did not do that.  We were not directed by the Board to make any map changes, although we will make some suggestions to you to take back hopefully with your recommendation to the Board to make the maps a little bit cleaner in that fashion.  
But that's the best explanation I can give to you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  I have this very cynical outlook on things that are done like this, and I'm trying to figure out what the agenda down the road and how this could be used in a manner we didn't anticipate; kind of like the questions I've asked today on the city part, I still worry about that.  I haven't got a handle on this other than understanding why it's done now a little bit, and how it's done.  It just doesn't still ‑‑ I still don't know why it needed to be.  
But, David?
MR. WEEKS:  Just one specific comment I remember the Board chairman making ‑‑ and he's the person that proposed the trifurcation.  He had made the statement that I want these separated into the three separate areas so that you can amend one area without affecting the other.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Oh, I understand that, yeah.  And I just didn't know what those anticipated amendment thoughts were, and I'm trying to figure out what's anybody got in mind.  And I always try to think a little bit ahead like that to know what to anticipate, and I can't figure this one out.  That's what kind ‑‑ I thought of maybe talking about it.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Chairman, if there are specific concerns that the cynical side of your personality might have that should be addressed, maybe they would go in not the sub‑elements but in the main element.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Maybe, and I don't know of any yet, because I haven't heard anything necessarily that's proposed other than the fact we're just going to go on and see where it takes us.  But ‑‑ and I'm still willing to go with that.  I just was hoping to get a little more refinement to the idea.  I haven't figured it out yet, but okay.  
Karl. 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Well, I think you bring up a good point.  If you're trying to define the areas by differences in their nature, then the dividing line of being 951, it sounds like it really should be farther east where it's ‑‑ those properties that are to the west of 951 ‑‑ I'm sorry, farther east, yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Past the canal.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Those properties that are east of 951 but that really are part of the 951 system should all be part of the urban estates.  Is that ‑‑ are you going in that direction because I ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, that's what I was thinking.  That's why I was trying to think this whole thing out.  Where is this going and what does it mean?  Because say you guys decide you want to go on, heaven forbid, city or county sewer and water.  You'd be a logical first step, and I would hope that you would really think about that, because it does have a lot of expensive connotations to it and then other requirements you may not like.  
But say you were to do that, and all of a sudden you say, yeah, that urban estates is going to go on, well, then the people in the rural part of the urban estates, which is on the west side of 951, are all going to be caught up in that, and that, to me, is no different than what then could snowball in ‑‑ rolling over into the rural estates where we really don't need that.  
But those are the kind of pieces I was trying to figure out how this all works together, and that's why that one chunk of land west of 951 but not part of the urban ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  West or east? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  West of 951 but east of the canal.  You know the big canal that separates your neighborhood from the other parts of the Estates?  Well, actually, it's Logan.  No, I don't know what it is.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  You mean the canal at the end of my neighborhood? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.  There's a ‑‑ no, on the ‑‑ along 951 to the west, north of Golden Gate Boulevard, you have rows of streets just like you have in all the rest of the Estates.  They all dead‑end into a canal down at the end, and you can't get over all the way to your area with those.  It's that area ‑‑ there it is.  
See the area of Golden Gate Boulevard, not all ‑‑ not all that goes over to Logan.  You can't get to Logan.  There's some canals or something through there.  But that area generally isn't your area.  You're up by the corner up by I‑75.  Our area can't get over to Logan.  We can only get to 951.  That's the piece I was talking about.  Those areas that can't reach over to Logan, they're restricted to go on 951 to go in and out.  They're no different than the rest of the Estates.  I just thought it was ‑‑ I don't know why you'd put them in the urban estates.  It's done that way. 
And, again, I'm not suggesting we need to change it.  I'm just trying to figure out how it's going to help anything.  But okay.  That was just a discussion.  I didn't know if anybody could give me better information than I already had.  
Who's got any questions on the rural estates?  Anybody?  Ned? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I do.  Let's see.  It's on Page 26, which is 1,859 in our world.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Thank you.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  And it has to do with at least three repetitions of the phrase, "This provision only applies east of Collier Boulevard."  I think that's superfluous now that we have trifurcated; it appears in 9, 13, and 14.   
MS. JENKINS:  I agree.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  Let's see then.
MS. JENKINS:  It doesn't make any sense anymore.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  It looks like I go to our Page 965 ‑‑ or 1,965, which is going to be, for the rest of the world, Page 32.  1,965; 32.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Just out of curiosity, when you say 1,965, you've got 1,965 pages? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Yeah.  This is the entire packet.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  More than that; 1,981 pages.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Really?  
COMMISSIONER FRY:  But who's counting. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, holy cow.  I just don't know ‑‑ I didn't know that that's how big it was all collected together.  Wow.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  This is at the page ‑‑ as I said, whatever it was I said ‑‑ 32 at the ‑‑ in Line 9, this is, if you look at the previous page, a list of things that are to be allowed.  And so Sub F is an item that sort of is all by itself is an item to be prohibited, so it's just a drafting question.  I think it ‑‑ substantively, it needs to be prohibited, but it shouldn't be among the things that are listed to be allowed.
MS. JENKINS:  And that was another private amendment.  So it's something that we didn't change through the restudy to affect that private amendment that was done some time ago.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But possibly for the next EAR it could be considered to be clarified.
MS. JENKINS:  And we can move it around if it's helpful.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  It's up to you.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Doesn't matter to me.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  It's not a substantive question that I have.  It's just a drafting question.  And it's in orange right in there amidst the apples.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Or lemons.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Or lemons, yeah.
MR. WEEKS:  I agree.  Because that's not a substantive change but it's a cleanup, I think that's fine that that staff ‑‑ the county can make that change.  That would be an exception to the protocol because it's not of substance.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  All right.  I go to 1,973 for Commissioner Fry and me.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Oh, I have a question on two pages before that, Ned, if I should jump in.  
On Page 38, your No. 38, Estates shopping center subdistrict.  I guess I maybe need a little bit of a history lesson here.  We were talking about SIC codes earlier, and on the following page, Page 39 is a very long list of SIC codes for allowable uses within that area.  And I'm just curious, how did that list come to be; whereas, we've avoided SICs elsewhere, why do we have a very long list of SIC codes here? 
MR. WEEKS:  This was a very extraordinary project.  It went all the way to the level of including a nonbinding referendum before the Comprehensive Plan amendment was taken to public hearings for final action.
And a lot of ‑‑ a lot of community involvement, a lot of concern, and I think the real point of it all was let's put all this detail in the Comprehensive Plan; it will make it more difficult to change it in the future.  
We're hearing all of these assertions of what the developer wants to do.  Let's tie their hands to it, and we'll do it in this way to make it difficult to change it.  Whereas usually we would have this level of detail in the zoning document which is easier to amend.  That's the answer.
MR. BOSI:  And just let the Planning Commission know that the Board took actions in terms of a land swap within their last public meeting.  And you will be presented with amendments to this section of the Golden Gate Area Master Plan as well as an area that covers 47 acres at the Immokalee Curve. 
So you can anticipate further amendments to the ‑‑ or to the Golden Gate Area Master Plan based upon the Board's actions for a land swap that they agreed to in terms of exchanging commercial at the Estates location to a ‑‑ to the Immokalee Curve location, and the specifics of that are yet to be determined and finalized.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  So in contrast to the SIC codes we were discussing previously, which you included as an attempt to answer a question, this is a highly vetted previously approved list of SIC codes.
MR. WEEKS:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  They're not ranges, though.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  They're specific.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah, that's a big difference when you deal with SIC.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Hear me out first.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  I'm finished.  Thank you. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I go to the very same concerns that Chairman Strain was raising about SIC codes.  I think when ‑‑ in a perfect world, from my perspective, when developers insert SIC codes, they should insert what's permitted only so that if it's not expressly permitted it's considered prohibited.  But the way we proceed, I understand, is, unfortunately, quite frequently different.  
Now, on this page, 40, you have SIC Code 7389.  And a lot of the ones ending in 9 are this way.  Business services not elsewhere classified.  Well, have we vetted everything that that's covered?  Because I'll tell you one thing that's covered.  Bail bondsmen.  Now, I can't believe that these folks would want bail bondsmen.
MR. WEEKS:  What I don't know is whether the PUD for this subdistrict includes that same SIC code listing as it is or if it has more specificity.  As you know, sometimes in zoning documents, PUDs will identify an SIC code and then only allow certain uses within or prohibit certain uses within.  I don't know how this was treated in the zoning document.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Well, to me, it shouldn't include bail bondsmen, so I'll just say that.  And, likewise ‑‑ a little farther down on Page 43, you have SIC Code 6163, and it's called loan brokers.  And I looked that up, and it includes payday loans.   
MR. BOSI:  And, once again, I'll remind this Planning Commission, this entire section's going to be removed from the Golden Gate Master Plan based upon the action of the Board of County Commissioners.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  Okay.  All right.  So I'll stop there.
MR. WEEKS:  And, again, this is private sector generated, and these are substantive changes you're discussing.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Well, I just ‑‑ I think that if people ‑‑ if the public, if you will, knew about how general some of these things are, they would say, we don't want that.  I'm confident they would.  But if this is going to be taken out in whole, then I don't need to address all of the rest of these.  In fact, I am finished, Chair.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  While we're finished, the only thing we've got to do is go through the ordinances, and most of everything we talked about is those.  We can move through them pretty quick.  I'd suggest we just work a little bit longer and wrap up the review of this today.  Is that okay with you guys?  
And, Terri, are you good for another 30 minutes or so or less?  
Okay.  And anybody have anything else on the rural estates? 
MS. JENKINS:  Mr. Chair, would you like to go through some of our suggested maps that would go along with these sub‑elements? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Are they maps that you included in the ordinances or not? 
MS. JENKINS:  No, because we were ‑‑ we were asked not to make any changes to the maps that are attached to the ordinances, so you'll see that the rural Golden Gate Estates map is the same Golden Gate Area Master Plan map with just rural estates and East Estates.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I saw that.
MS. JENKINS:  Or urban estates, sorry.  But we would recommend, as we've shown here, to create a map that is specific to the sub‑element.  So when we're speaking about the urban ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.
MS. JENKINS:  ‑‑ rural estates, the map is just for the rural/urban estates.  So if that could be part of your consideration.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I would highly think that would be a good idea.  So you've got a map like this for each area? 
MS. JENKINS:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  The city you've already got one for.  I saw it in the ordinance.  You've got ‑‑ this one, then, would be for the urban area, so it clearly defines the urban area or the urban estates area.  Then the next one for the rural area would include everything, but would it not include the Area 5 to the south since that's no longer active, or were you just leaving it there for ‑‑ because it's there? 
MS. JENKINS:  We are leaving it there because it's there, but it's shown in green, you know, and defined as what it is.  So, historically, that's been part of your rural estates.  So, you know, it's there.  We can remove it.  It is referenced in the text, though.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I like the maps.  I like ‑‑ it's a good idea.  Does everybody else? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I agree.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Yeah.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Is that the only maps you'd had? 
MS. JENKINS:  There's one more, Mr. Chair, that ‑‑ there is the Golden Gate Estates commercial infill subdistrict, and that was one map, the infill subdistricts, which included one in Golden Gate City and two in the urban estates, and we would ‑‑ we have those maps if you'd like to see them, but we would recommend breaking those maps out as well.  So the one infill district for the city is the city not showing the urban estates and vice versa.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That's one of the things I noticed on the ordinances.  There is a map in there that's kind of confusing because it calls out some changes in the city, but they're on the section for the urban in the ‑‑ is that ‑‑ 
MS. JENKINS:  Right, and we would recommend making those changes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I don't have a problem with that.  I think it's a good idea.  Why don't we move into the ordinances.  Have you all looked at the ordinance language?
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I have not.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Has anybody here got any questions on the nine ordinances that adopt everything that we're looking at? 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  No.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Because if you don't, then I'll move through mine a lot quicker because I'll just go at it and tell you what I'm thinking.
Okay.  And let me tell you the first one I've got a question of.  It's ‑‑ I don't know how to describe it.  It's the adoption CCME.  Is that ‑‑ does that get you where you need to go?  And it's only four pages.  The very last page has a paragraph in it; Policy 6.1.1.  Policy 6.1.1 has a big underlined sentence.  I need someone to tell me what that sentence means.  I know ‑‑ I've read it.  I just can't understand what it is trying to do.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  While that's being looked, Mr. Chairman, could we ask Troy to bring in that device so that we could see on the screen what you're looking at.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I bet you he's not even listening.  He's probably gone to lunch.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Oh, okay.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I'm just kidding.  If, Troy, you hear this, let's give it a try.  That's a good idea.
MS. JENKINS:  I'll be happy to put it on the overhead as soon as I find it.  That's all.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  There he is.  That little device. 
MR. MILLER:  I would never be asleep during the meetings.  It's fascinating.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I know.  That's why I figured I'd get your attention.   
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Fascinating.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  That is one nifty device.  And this way we can see what's on the Chairman's screen.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  He's got a little thing that's got to pop up.  There it is.
MS. JENKINS:  That's stormwater.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  It could be potentially a very embarrassing device.   
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Troy, what do I do?  I've got the ‑‑ oh, it's connected just now.  It just was delayed a bit.  That's okay.  
MR. MILLER:  You push the button on the little thing.  There you go.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Good idea, Ned.  
There it is, 6.1.1.  See that underlined sentence?  What ‑‑ does anybody ‑‑ can anybody explain what that means? 
MR. WEEKS:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.
MR. WEEKS:  Ordinarily for a property of that size, it says up to 13 acres, if you go to divide that, it would trigger the subdivision regulations.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Right.  
MR. WEEKS:  And one of the things that would be required would be to have a preserve area.  And the purpose of having this defined as a single‑family dwelling unit, then it would not trigger that requirement for the preserve area.  There's very few large parcels in the Estates, but that's what it's for.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That could even ‑‑ this apply to.  Okay.  That what I ‑‑ that takes care of my question on that one.
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  David, does that apply to both the urban and the rural Golden Gate Estates?
MR. WEEKS:  It would, although my recollection is those parcels of that size only exist in the rural estates.
MS. JENKINS:  It does reference as designated residential estates.  So the ‑‑ it's still designated as residential Estates in both urban and rural, so ‑‑ 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  I just didn't know if you wanted to mention whether it was rural or urban since we changed our definitions.
MR. WEEKS:  No.
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  I'd just clarify that.
MR. WEEKS:  Thank you.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  This is one of the ordinances that was proposed for the ‑‑ heck, I don't ‑‑ there it is right ‑‑ there's your title.  261 is the PL number ‑‑ and I had caught this when I was reviewing the language for the SIC discussion we had for the city, and that's why I highlighted it.  That's been explained, so I think what this says is whatever those uses turn out to be, they're in addition to the regular activity center uses.  But the way David described you're going to write it, they're going to be consistent with activity center uses, because you're not going to be exceeding C5 uses by the time it's said and done; is that right? 
MS. JENKINS:  Well, there could be uses exceeding C5 uses that are light manufacturing ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But they're smaller and compatible in nature? 
MS. JENKINS:  Correct.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  That works.  That's why that was highlighted.  So now we'll go on to the next one.  
Oh, this is a little bit larger.  Oh, this is not going to be fun, but it is going to be fun because these are all ‑‑ they're not done by me.  The PUDF's picking them up as changes made. 
Urban estates, this is the vision statement that I was telling you about.  Golden Gate urban estates is a low density, large‑lot residential neighborhood in a natural setting with convenient access to the coastal area.
It doesn't.  The way it's drawn, not all of it has convenient ‑‑ no different access than parts of the rural estates.  That's what got me wondering why we're doing all this, because it's not a true statement.  Do we need to change that ‑‑
MS. JENKINS:  Well, those missions and vision statements were created at the public workshops by those residents that were participating during those public workshops ‑‑
(Simultaneous crosstalk.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But they wouldn't have known about the split, would they?  Because the split didn't come until after the Board did transmittal.
MS. JENKINS:  That's correct.  They were thinking about, you know, their area of the urban estates, which we have defined throughout our public workshops as the defining line of 951.  So that was clear in all our mapping when we were talking to each one, and we had specific workshops in the rural estates and the urban estates and the city, different workshops.  So those that were attending from the urban estates created their own vision statement.  
So we're presenting to you what the public said would be their vision statement.  And I think now with the trifurcation, they may want to change that.  When they can see their goals, objectives, and policies are stand‑alone, it might be an opportunity to say, you know, we need to beef this up a little bit.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  But as it stands now, it's going forward like it is, right?  So to change it in the future they'd have to do a GMP, or could you do it during EAR or something like that?  
MS. JENKINS:  Correct, or during the next update of this plan.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Twenty years from now?
MS. JENKINS:  Sure.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  You'll still be here, Mark.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I mean, it's not that big of a deal, but that's what caught my concern.
MS. JENKINS:  Yeah.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  That's what brought it all to the head, so...  
Okay.  This is the Golden Gate City sub‑element, and my issues here were ‑‑ I don't have any.  That one goes away.  And this one here ‑‑ oh, the county shall continue to pursue the best‑management practices approach to making septage treatment available to residences and businesses in Golden Gate Estates as a component of biosolid processing either directly through a private entity or through a public/private partnership.  
I just want to be careful that doesn't open the door to the Utility Department ‑‑ I mean, the cost to put sewage in Golden Gate Estates is phenomenal.  It's $100,000‑plus per lot from the last estimate that was done, and that's only on a narrow lot.  That's on your smaller lots.  So you get to your bigger lots, you're going to be paying more.  That's not even reasonable.  So I don't know what this is there for, but ‑‑
MS. JENKINS:  You know, as I recall Kris explaining this to me was that it was to provide better service for your waste that's coming out of your septic system because, as I'm understanding, we're hauling it out of the county now.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  So this is for the hauling.  I know that.  Tim Nance was working on that.
MS. JENKINS:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.
MS. JENKINS:  And so septage treatment availability ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Is the treatment of the ‑‑  
MS. JENKINS:  ‑‑ biosolid processing.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  ‑‑ stuff that's already ‑‑ 
MS. JENKINS:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Gotcha.  That takes care of this.  See, I knew this one would move fast.
Oh, this is the two years.  What is a DWM?  Dispersed water management.
MS. JENKINS:  Dispersed water management. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.
MS. JENKINS:  Those are programs ‑‑ and they just had actually a pretty good article.  DEP increased their funding.  Dispersed water management basically is trying to do a new program where you are paying large landowners to hold water for treatment before it flows south into the Glades.  So it's ‑‑ water farming is dispersed water management.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  But you just said large landowners.  Then why is this in Golden Gate Estates? 
MS. JENKINS:  Well, the larger lots that you might have an opportunity to do that is for ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, you're looking at the possibility of mandatory provisions.  Did the people in ‑‑ this was vetted with everybody?  This is ‑‑
MS. JENKINS:  Yes.  Yeah, it went through all of the public workshops and the transmittal hearings as written.  So it's just a feasibility study.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well ‑‑ but, yeah, then it's ‑‑ then they're going to talk about how to implement it through voluntary incentive or mandatory provisions.  The part I am concerned about is mandatory.  
The least impactful lots in this entire county are those in Golden Gate Estates because they're so large.  So I don't understand why any kind of dispersed water management is focused on them when we ought to be focusing on all these postage‑stamp lots that have 70 percent impervious area, and you can't ‑‑ and they're the ones causing all the runoff problems.  I mean, it just seems like it's backwards to the approach we should be taking.  
I just don't know why it's focused on the Estates.  I don't understand that.  I'll ‑‑ well, I'll discuss it with somebody else before the next level and see what happens.  
Let me run down.  Oh, this is the ‑‑ I already told you about this.  And that was the definition thing, but you've kind of clarified to me what we're doing on that.  
This is ‑‑ oh, no.  This is the urban ‑‑ here.  Okay.  In the urban area we've got Goal 3., to preserve the areas' rural character as defined by large wooded lots and keeping of livestock and the ability to grow crops, wildlife activity, environmental stewardship, low‑density residential development and limitation on commercial and conditional uses. 
I don't mind that being in the urban estates area, but then that's the same as we've got in the rural area.  So what is it we need ‑‑ I mean, how does this fit with what they want the change to be, if they want it changed?  And if they don't want it changed, why are we changing them? 
MS. JENKINS:  So it is just a repeat of the goal, you know, that goes to the Estates.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Right.
MS. JENKINS:  And, you know, during the public workshops, the urban area was very much also identifying with that large lot, low residential ‑‑ yeah.  It ‑‑
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  This just doesn't ‑‑ this just doesn't make a lot of sense.
MS. JENKINS:  But those are the things now, I think if the urban estates folks come back and go, this doesn't make any sense for us, you know, we see how it's just repeated in both ‑‑ because we weren't directed by the Board to specifically change language, only to trifurcate.  But this is something they may want to focus now on their own goals and objectives and redefining those slightly.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, like this one, Goal 4, preserve the rural character of the urban Golden Gate Estates. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Why wouldn't you just take the word "rural" out? 
MR. WEEKS:  I'll remind the Commission, though, that though it's been proposed to be trifurcated, splitting the Estates into what we call urban and rural, I think the terminology of urban estates is simply because it's proximate to the urban area.  It's still part of Golden Gate Estates.  It is still subject to the limitation of density of one unit per two‑and‑a‑quarter acres.  It's still part of the same plat that was originally five‑acre tracts.  It is still what we could call a semirural density.  And so ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  All understood, but maybe "semirural" is the better word.  I would suggest you just take the word "rural" out.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, you know, I was just pointing it out.  Everything I'm finding is so contradictive of what I thought was the reason for this whole separation in the first place.  There's no reason now for it.  Everything's the same.  I just don't get it.  But I'm willing to go on and keep walking through this just to show you this, but it's just odd.  And that's what gotten me worried there's something going on that we just don't understand.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  I just wondered if I'm missing something.  Is the keeping of livestock a priority for the urban Golden Gate Estates people?  I haven't heard that requirement in my neighborhood.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Next‑door neighbor is raising them.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  There are few, I think, goats and horses and things.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I think you're right, Karl, but those are the things I thought would be rewritten since this is the replanning effort, and this trifurcation was part of that effort.  So if we're going to do it, why aren't we doing it as a replanning effort and doing it right instead of, well, we'll just split them up now even though they're the same, and then we'll talk about it later.  Well, the last time we said this, the later ‑‑ it has been 20 years.  So I'm just kind of lost in this whole thing.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  The other thing I see is that in the rural Golden Gate Estates, it sounded like one of their priorities was limited access to services in focused areas, basically.  I don't think that applies at all to the urban ‑‑ I think we live in the urban estates because we want vast access to ‑‑ greater access to resources than if we lived out ‑‑ farther out west ‑‑ or east. 
MS. JENKINS:  And I think that probably part of their vision statement is easy access to the coastal area.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Yeah, and to services ‑‑ and to services, I think. 
MS. JENKINS:  Yeah.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  On this map ‑‑ on a couple of these maps it has this notation, that one in blue, subject, site additions, with arrows going down in the city.  Why don't we just take that off the map?  I mean, I don't know why it's there.  This is the urban area map.  Why do we have that on ‑‑ only referenced as the city? 
MS. JENKINS:  Well, it was like that because when we made some changes only to the urban estates, it will go away as we adopt it, and it will just be the Golden Gate.  But, yeah, that was just to show exactly where the ‑‑  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.  The whole plan's fine, but just where the ‑‑ just the language, "subject site additions" with those arrows.  Just drop those is all I'm trying to say.  Yeah, okay.
MR. WEEKS:  That goes back to the idea that we did not receive direction from the Board to create three separate maps.  And so we're identifying where the changes are occurring.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Oh, okay.  Now, I ‑‑ I think that gets us ‑‑ yeah, all the rest of this is standard.  I think that's just about the last one.  Yep, it is.  
So, Terri, that's the last one, kid.  
So all the other ordinances ‑‑ I mean, there's only two left.  I don't have questions on those.  And I'm ‑‑ that's all the comments I had.  Does anybody else have any further comments? 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  One observation.  There are ‑‑ and I just grabbed a few snippets ‑‑ a lot of commitments.  We went through this in the Immokalee Master Plan where all these ‑‑ within one year we will do this, within two years we will do this.  And there seemed like there are a lot of commitments in this document as well.  
Larger notice area, when you have larger properties that have a larger ‑‑ I definitely applaud that, but it's a commitment within a certain period of time.  
Combining parcels, the smaller parcels that are below 2.25 acres.  I wondered ‑‑ and then also the dispersed water management that Chairman Strain brought up, all these commitments, is there a mechanism by which all these are tracked and to make sure that they are pursued and executed?
MS. JENKINS:  I'll defer to the manager of the Comp Plan to talk about tracking of commitments. 
MR. WEEKS:  There's not a good mechanism.  I can tell you that previously when the state law required an evaluation and appraisal report every seven years, if you weren't doing it more frequently than that, that required it, because we would prepare a report that we'd have to present to the State, and it would potentially be identifying, well, here's a policy where we said we would do something in two years.  Here it is seven years later, and we haven't done it.  
But we don't have a specific tracking mechanism.  That's something internally we need to work on.  We need to create protocol, and I believe we will, of identifying all of these ‑‑ because I know it was discussed some at the Immokalee Master Plan hearing where the other county agencies that would have responsibility for any of these commitments had been consulted; they were aware of and they were on board with.  We just need to take that to the next step of a formality of saying once the plans are adopted, if they include these commitments, that we identify these and notify each of these agencies, okay, this needs to be added to your to‑do list, because here's the commitment in the adopted Comprehensive Plan.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  So you're describing a master list of all the commitments within these master plans and who's responsible.
MS. JENKINS:  And who's responsible.  Like in Immokalee, for Golden Gate, we did meet with the managers of each section that would be responsible.  The Land Development Code, for instance.  Do you have the capacity to initiate these things within one or two years?  And the answer was yes, so we left it at one or two years, whatever the statement was in there.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  One of the things I observed, I think, really does dilute the Estates nature of the Estates area is these smaller lots that are really not ‑‑ don't represent really what the Estates is.  Large lots.  They're very long and very narrow.  They're really not ideal for homesites but yet they're utilized all the time.  
What methods will be used?  It's referenced, the strategies will be developed to combine parcels, incentive programs.  What is in mind for making that happen?   
MS. JENKINS:  I don't know that we have anything specific in mind yet, but I think that that's part of going back out and talking with those landowners to develop those incentives to how can we combine these.  And also, if there's an opportunity to work with Conservation Collier to look at these small Band‑aid lights (sic) and see if there's an opportunity there, if there's, you know, value there to combine those.  
So those incentives are going to have to be developed through the process of public workshops in the Land Development Code to see what would entice someone to create larger lots there.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Can I assume this only applies to undeveloped lots? 
MS. JENKINS:  Yes.
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Thank you.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  You guys, we're done with the Golden Gate Master Plan.  I think we can probably get it off of our plate today.  The only thing I'd like to ask, in concurrence with the rest of you, is that one section of the city issue over the SIC codes versus what we really intend there.  That's the only part I'd like to have this ‑‑ I think this panel needs to review in all the things we did to make sure it's written as concisely as possible.
MS. JENKINS:  Well, I'm happy to bring it back at consent and show you ‑‑ you know, I have a whole list of things that you have asked us to change.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Would you mind doing that?  What I'd like you to do, though, is bring back the proposed language you need for a recommendation of approval for the ordinances.  We have a list of the ordinances, but there's no numbers on them.  So I'm not sure how you want them called out.  So when we make a recommendation to the Board to approve Ordinance X whatever ‑‑ the ones I have don't have numbers on them.
MS. JENKINS:  When do we get the numbers, Heidi, for the ordinances?  That's after it's adopted. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  How do we identify what we're recommending for approval then?  
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  The Clerk assigns it when it's approved by the Board.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  But then how do we recommend it at this point?  Because there's nine of them.
MS. JENKINS:  So we can reference the Golden Gate ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Make them separate agenda items under ‑‑ just add them as an agenda item so we can look ‑‑ we can say we're recommending agenda item or something like that, because right now they're just in a large file; at least that's all I've got.
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Well, you can break them up by the CCME, the Golden Gate Area Master Plan, the urban, you know. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Whatever you guys want to do.  If you could bring it back for final sendoff, we would appreciate that.  And the only part I'm interested now in seeing is the wrap‑up in the language in the city part of it.
MS. JENKINS:  So would it be most helpful, then, if we just accept all changes, you see a clean document, and then we're only redlining the changes of today, or do you want ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, I think the changes today ‑‑ just redline the changes today is all I'm ‑‑ 
MS. JENKINS:  Okay.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Just redline today's changes.  Then we'll scan through it real quick, catch them all.  Then at that point we can recommend ‑‑ the ordinance will be coordinated to the redline changes, so we just assume it is, and we'll go from there. 
MR. WEEKS:  Point being that we would provide ‑‑ the base document would be with no underline or strikethrough.  The only underline and strikethrough would be to reflect your actions today?
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Correct.
MR. WEEKS:  Okay.  
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I would think that's all we need at this point.  Okay.  Good.  Thank you.  That will work.  Anybody else have anything?
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Then that one will go on the agenda at the end of whatever the next meeting you have it ready for, and we'll handle it.  Okay.
Hearing that, then let's ‑‑ go ahead. 
MS. JENKINS:  Thinking about advertisement again and continuance and making sure our procedures are correct in what we need to do ‑‑ I mean, these are not substantive changes ‑‑ or not ‑‑ they're substantive, but they're not difficult to make these changes quickly for you.  So, you know ‑‑ 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  If they take a vote today, the vote today would ‑‑ 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  We're not voting today.  The mic's not working.  We're not ‑‑ 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Oh, you're not bringing it back on consent? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, consent ‑‑ oh, I see.  We'll vote today subject to consent.  Yeah, we could do that.  Well, no, we can't.  I'd like them to come back with something to vote on.  We've got all the ordinances, but they're in a big file.  We need them isolated on the agenda so we know what we're actually voting on.
MS. JENKINS:  And I don't mind if ‑‑ I mean, we can follow you if you say ‑‑ you know, you want to vote on the element today with the changes that were mentioned; we want to vote on the Golden Gate City sub‑element today. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Well, with the exception of the city the changes ‑‑ well, we can see that on consent.  I don't have a problem with that.  
Heidi, what do you need us to do to make it sufficient for you? 
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Well, it's at your pleasure how you'd like to proceed.  We can take the vote today and then you take a vote to ask that it come back on consent agenda so you can check to make sure that your changes were made, or you can continue the item to a date certain and then take your vote then; however, what you directed Anita to bring back is ‑‑ would not be the final ordinance version because you asked that the changes come back in strikethrough and underline to show only your changes today.  
I would suggest that maybe you do a final ordinance and ask staff to just highlight the sections that changed.  Could you do that?
MS. JENKINS:  Sure.
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  It would be easier to then just remove the highlighting when we print the final version for the Board.  Does that work? 
MS. JENKINS:  Yes.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Yeah.  That works for me.
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Okay.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So we'll ‑‑ we've got nine ordinances.  We'll recommend them all for approval subject to the changes we did today and finalization of a review on consent.
MS. JENKINS:  Okay.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Do we have to read each ordinance separately, or can we just ‑‑ I could read them all together and ask for one motion to approve them all?  There's nine of them.  I have them all.
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Yeah, I think you can take one motion to approve them all.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Then if there's ‑‑ okay with you guys, I'll read off the nine motions (sic), and then we can make a motion.  
Go ahead, Ned.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Chairman, you mentioned the SIC codes in the urban section ‑‑ or excuse me ‑‑ the city section.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Correct.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  And I'm concerned also about where they appear in the rural section.  And I understood from Mr. Bosi that that also is coming out?
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Not now.  It will be coming out eventually.  What's happening is there's a land swap between that parcel and the Randall Curve.  But the pieces that you're asking about have already been incorporated into a PUD.  I looked at the PUD.  So it's already there.  I don't know how we can take it out now without interfering with someone's property rights on a parcel that's being swapped anyway.  So maybe we don't need to mess with it.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.  Well, how will I have another bite at the apple with respect to the payday loans and the bail bondsmen? 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  It's too late.  It's already a PUD.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  All right.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I mean, tell me.
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  Yeah.  It's already approved, and it was a private amendment, as staff had mentioned.  So we don't like to take away rights ‑‑ 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.
MS. ASHTON-CICKO:  ‑‑ in amendments.  We leave it as‑is.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  After you had asked that, I checked.  It's 7399 and the other one are both in there.
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Okay.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  So that would mean we'd all have ‑‑ I can read all these nine off, if you all are comfortable, the remaining four of us.  We can take one vote and be done and then come back on consent to make sure everything's done right.  Is that okay? 
Okay.  There's nine ordinances.  The first one is the ordinance for the adoption of the CCME portion.  The second one is the ordinance for the adoption of the Future Land Use Element portion, FLUE.  The third one is the ordinance for the adoption of the Golden Gate Area Master Plan, the general master plan, the larger one.  The fourth one is the ordinance for the adoption of the Golden Gate City portion of that plan.  The fifth one is the ordinance for the adoption of a Golden Gate rural estates area of that plan.  The one after that will be the adoption of the urban Golden Gate Estates area.  And the next one will be the adoption of the solid waste portion of the plan.  And the seventh one will be ‑‑ or the eighth one will be adoption of the stormwater section of the plan.  And the last one will be the adoption of the transportation section of the plan.  
They don't have numbers on them because they haven't been approved yet, but those are the nine elements that we're talking about.  
Is there a motion to approve those as ‑‑ for recommendation as discussed and amended pursuant to staff's reading of the consent agenda? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  I'll make that motion.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Is there a second? 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Second.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Motion made by Ned; seconded by the other Fry.  
With that, all in favor, signify by saying aye. 
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Anybody opposed? 
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Motion carries 4‑0.  
That gets it over, Anita, so it's all yours to bring back.  And we'll put it on the end of the next agenda up that you can get back with it.
MS. JENKINS:  Okay.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Okay.  Thank you.  And I guess that takes us to the end of our regularly scheduled business.  We don't have any new business.  Is there any old business?  
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  I don't see any listed.  
Any public comment?
(No response.) 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Hearing none, is there a motion to adjourn? 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  So moved.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  By Ned.
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Second.
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Seconded by Karen.  
All in favor, signify by saying aye.   
COMMISSIONER FRY:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER FRYER:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  Aye. 
COMMISSIONER HOMIAK:  Aye. 
CHAIRMAN STRAIN:  We're out of here.  Thank you all.  
 
*******
	There being no further business for the good of the County, the meeting was adjourned by order of the Chair at 12:28 p.m.  
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